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          1                      P-R-O-C-E-E-D-I-N-G-S



          2             THE DEPUTY CLERK:  CIVIL ACTIONS 98-1232 AND



          3   98-1233, UNITED STATES OF AMERICA VERSUS MICROSOFT AND THE



          4   STATE OF NEW YORK, ET AL. VERSUS MICROSOFT.



          5             PHILLIP MALONE, STEPHEN HOUCK AND DAVID BOIES FOR



          6   THE PLAINTIFFS.



          7             JOHN WARDEN, STEVEN HOLLEY, RICHARD UROWSKY AND



          8   WILLIAM NEUKOM FOR THE DEFENDANT.



          9             THE COURT:  GOOD MORNING, EVERYONE.



         10             MR. WARDEN:  GOOD MORNING, YOUR HONOR.



         11             THE COURT:  MR. BARKSDALE, WELCOME BACK.  LET ME



         12   REMIND YOU THAT YOU'RE STILL UNDER OATH, SIR.



         13             THE WITNESS:  YES, SIR.



         14                  CROSS-EXAMINATION (CONTINUED.)



         15   BY MR. WARDEN:



         16   Q.  GOOD MORNING AGAIN, MR. BARKSDALE.



         17   A.  GOOD MORNING.



         18   Q.  DID YOU DISCUSS YOUR TESTIMONY WITH ANYONE SINCE THE



         19   RECESS OF COURT LAST THURSDAY?



         20   A.  YES, I DID.



         21   Q.  AND WITH WHOM?



         22   A.  MY COUNSEL.



         23   Q.  HOW LONG?



         24   A.  WELL, IT WAS OVER DINNER LAST NIGHT AND THE DINNER



         25   LASTED APPROXIMATELY, I SUPPOSE, AN HOUR OR AN HOUR AND 15
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          1   MINUTES.



          2   Q.  WAS ANYONE PRESENT BESIDES YOU AND YOUR COUNSEL?



          3   A.  NO, SIR.



          4   Q.  LAST WEEK WHEN YOU WERE TESTIFYING, I ASKED YOU FOR



          5   COPIES OF ANY BUSINESS MODELS, PLANS, OR BUDGETS OR SIMILAR



          6   DOCUMENTS.  DO YOU RECALL THAT?



          7   A.  YES, I DO.



          8   Q.  AND WE ALSO SERVED A TRIAL SUBPOENA FOR SUCH DOCUMENTS



          9   ON YOUR COUNSEL.  ARE YOU AWARE OF THAT?



         10   A.  I AM AWARE OF THAT.



         11   Q.  THIS MORNING, YOUR GENERAL COUNSEL ADVISED MR. LACOVARA



         12   THAT THERE WERE NO DOCUMENTS TO PRODUCE IN RESPONSE TO THAT



         13   SUBPOENA WITH THE EXCEPTION OF ONE DOCUMENT WHICH MAY OR MAY



         14   NOT BE RESPONSIVE THAT I WILL GET TO IN A MOMENT.  THERE



         15   WERE NO BUSINESS MODELS, PLANS, OR PROJECTIONS FROM THE



         16   1995/1996 PERIOD; IS THAT CORRECT?



         17   A.  I BELIEVE, UNLESS YOU INCLUDE THE DOCUMENT THAT I



         18   UNDERSTAND WE DID GIVE YOU, WHICH WAS THAT DOCUMENT I SPOKE



         19   OF THE OTHER DAY, WHICH WAS THE SERIES C PROSPECTUS, WHICH



         20   IS WHAT I BELIEVE WE WERE ABLE TO FIND AND GIVE YOU.



         21             WE ALSO, I BELIEVE, GAVE YOU A SUBPOENA -- EXCUSE



         22   ME.  WE GAVE YOU AN AFFIDAVIT FROM OUR CONTROLLER ON ANOTHER



         23   MATTER THAT YOU HAD SUBPOENAED OR ASKED FOR, WHICH WERE THE



         24   FINANCIAL ACCOUNTING OF BUNDLED SOFTWARE PRODUCTS OVER THE



         25   PERIOD.



�

                                                                               6



          1   Q.  CORRECT.



          2             MR. WARDEN:  YOUR HONOR, I WOULD LIKE TO OFFER AT



          3   THIS TIME DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 68, WHICH IS A PRIVATE



          4   PLACEMENT MEMORANDUM FOR NETSCAPE SERIES C PREFERRED STOCK,



          5   DATED JANUARY 16, 1995.  I HAVE ONLY THE COPY THAT MS. KATZ



          6   HANDED TO US THIS MORNING.  PLAINTIFFS HAVE COPIES, WHICH



          7   SHE GAVE TO THEM.



          8             WE WILL HAVE ADDITIONAL COPIES MADE OVER THE



          9   LUNCHEON RECESS, BUT I WOULD LIKE TO USE THE DOCUMENT -- ONE



         10   PARAGRAPH OF IT, AT THIS TIME, WHICH I CAN PUT ON THE ELMO.



         11             THE COURT:  THAT'S FINE.  ARE YOU OFFERING IT NOW?



         12             MR. WARDEN:  YES.



         13             MR. BOIES:  NO OBJECTION, YOUR HONOR.



         14             THE COURT:  ALL RIGHT.  DEFENDANT'S 68 IS



         15   ADMITTED.



         16                                   (WHEREUPON, DEFENDANT'S



         17                                   EXHIBIT NUMBER 68 WAS



         18                                   RECEIVED IN EVIDENCE.)



         19             MR. WARDEN:  MR. LACOVARA TELLS ME I MAY HAVE



         20   ERRED WITH RESPECT TO SOME OF THE PARTICULARS OF WHEN WE



         21   WERE TOLD WHAT BY WHAT LAWYER FROM NETSCAPE.  WE HAVE A



         22   LETTER FROM MR. SNYDER DATED TODAY, AND HE SAYS HE SPOKE



         23   WITH MS. KATZ ON FRIDAY, NOT THIS MORNING.



         24             THE COURT:  ALL RIGHT.



         25   MR. WARDEN:
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          1   Q.   I DIRECT THE WITNESS' AND THE COURT'S ATTENTION TO THE



          2   PARAGRAPH THAT HAS THE ARROW OPPOSITE IT.  THIS COMES WITHIN



          3   THE "RISK FACTORS" MAJOR HEADING IN THE PRIVATE PLACEMENT



          4   MEMORANDUM AND UNDER THE SUBHEADING, "COMPETITION."



          5             AND I DIRECT THE WITNESS' AND THE COURT'S



          6   ATTENTION IN PARTICULAR TO THE -- I WILL READ THE WHOLE



          7   PARAGRAPH:  THE COMPANY EXPECTS SUBSTANTIAL ADDITIONAL



          8   COMPETITION FROM EXISTING COMPETITORS AND FROM A NUMBER OF



          9   COMPANIES THAT MAY ENTER THE COMPANY'S EXISTING AND FUTURE



         10   MARKETS.  THE COMPANY'S CURRENT AND POTENTIAL COMPETITORS



         11   CAN BE DIVIDED INTO SEVERAL GROUPS:  BROWSER SOFTWARE



         12   VENDORS, WEB SERVER SOFTWARE AND SERVICE VENDORS, P.C.



         13   SOFTWARE VENDORS, AND ON-LINE SERVICE PROVIDERS.  IN



         14   PARTICULAR, THE COMPANY BELIEVES THAT P.C. SOFTWARE VENDORS



         15   MIGHT BECOME PARTICULARLY FORMIDABLE COMPETITORS.



         16             LET ME PAUSE THERE AND SAY, WHAT ARE P.C. SOFTWARE



         17   VENDORS?



         18   A.  I BELIEVE IT WOULD INCLUDE THE CATEGORY THAT MICROSOFT



         19   AND OTHERS WOULD REPRESENT, WHO WRITE SOFTWARE PRIMARILY



         20   AIMED AT PERSONAL COMPUTERS.



         21   Q.  NOW, THAT'S DISTINGUISHED IN THE SENTENCE FROM BROWSER



         22   SOFTWARE VENDORS.  WHAT'S THE DIFFERENCE?



         23   A.  A BROWSER SOFTWARE VENDOR AT THAT TIME WOULD HAVE BEEN



         24   SOMEONE LIKE SPYGLASS, I BELIEVE.



         25   Q.  THEY WROTE BROWSERS FOR P.C.'S, DIDN'T THEY?
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          1   A.  YES.



          2   Q.  THE DOCUMENT CONTINUES:  MICROSOFT CORPORATION IS



          3   ALREADY LICENSING BROWSER SOFTWARE FROM SPYGLASS AND HAS



          4   ANNOUNCED ITS INTENTIONS TO ADD FUNCTIONALITY TO THE BROWSER



          5   SOFTWARE AND TO BUNDLE IT WITH THE WINDOWS 95 OPERATING



          6   SYSTEM.



          7             DOES THIS REFRESH YOUR RECOLLECTION THAT YOU KNEW



          8   NO LATER THAN JANUARY OF 1995 THAT MICROSOFT INTENDED TO



          9   INCLUDE BROWSING FUNCTIONALITY IN WINDOWS?



         10   A.  I DON'T BELIEVE I HAVE SAID ANYTHING OTHER THAN THAT.



         11   THIS IS THE RISK FACTORS OF THE COMPANY.  WE'RE TRYING TO



         12   IDENTIFY EVERY SINGLE THING.  AND I NOTICED THAT IN THE



         13   WINDOWS 95 ANNOUNCED DOCUMENT, THEY CLAIMED THAT THEY HAD



         14   INCLUDED INTERNET PLUMBING, WHICH WE CALLED FUNCTIONALITY.



         15   BUT PLUMBING IN THAT PRODUCT THAT THEY DID BUNDLE WAS NOT A



         16   BROWSER.



         17   Q.  THE COMPANY BELIEVES THAT THE OTHER PRIMARY P.C.



         18   OPERATING SYSTEM VENDORS, APPLE COMPUTER, INC., AND



         19   INTERNATIONAL BUSINESS MACHINES CORPORATION, IBM, WILL ALSO



         20   EVENTUALLY INCORPORATE SOME WEB BROWSER FUNCTIONS INTO THEIR



         21   OPERATING SYSTEMS AS STANDARD FEATURES.



         22             DOES THAT CORRECTLY STATE NETSCAPE'S UNDERSTANDING



         23   AS OF THE DATE OF THE PRIVATE PLACEMENT MEMORANDUM IN



         24   JANUARY 1995?



         25   A.  WELL, IT WAS OUR UNDERSTANDING THAT SUCH FUNCTIONS AS
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          1   TCP/IP THAT YOU MENTIONED THE OTHER DAY, SLIP, PPP, WHICH



          2   ARE OTHER PROTOCOLS OR STACKS, WERE GOING TO BE INCLUDED IN



          3   THOSE VENDORS' PRODUCTS AS WELL, AND I BELIEVE SUBSEQUENTLY



          4   THEY WERE.



          5   Q.  CONTINUING:  THIS MAY ALSO BE TRUE OF UNIX OPERATING



          6   SYSTEM VENDORS, SUCH AS SUN MICROSYSTEMS, INC., HEWLETT



          7   PACKARD COMPANY, IBM, DIGITAL EQUIPMENT CORPORATION, THE



          8   SANTA CRUZ OPERATION, INC., AND SILICON GRAPHICS, INC.  IF



          9   THESE COMPANIES INCORPORATE WEB BROWSER FUNCTIONALITY INTO



         10   THEIR SOFTWARE PRODUCTS, THEY COULD SUBSEQUENTLY OFFER THIS



         11   FUNCTIONALITY AT LITTLE OR NO ADDITIONAL COST TO CUSTOMERS.



         12             DO THOSE STATEMENTS CORRECTLY REPRESENT THE



         13   UNDERSTANDING OF NETSCAPE CORPORATION IN JANUARY 1995?



         14   A.  AS I HAVE INDICATED, THEY COULD DO THAT, WHICH IS WHAT



         15   IT SAYS.  THIS WAS DESIGNED TO GIVE YOU THE WORST POSSIBLE



         16   SCENARIO OF WHAT COMPANIES COULD DO, AND I BELIEVE AT THAT



         17   TIME WE WOULD AGREE THAT THEY COULD DO THAT.



         18   Q.  ISN'T IT A FACT THAT YOU KNEW -- YOU AT NETSCAPE -- YOU



         19   AND YOUR COLLEAGUES KNEW IN JANUARY 1995, THAT MICROSOFT



         20   INTENDED TO INCLUDE WEB BROWSING FUNCTIONALITY IN THE



         21   WINDOWS OPERATING SYSTEM AT NO ADDITIONAL COST TO THE



         22   CONSUMER?



         23   A.  I THINK I HAVE SAID REPEATEDLY THAT WE HAD ALL ALONG



         24   KNOWN, ASSUMED, AND THOUGHT THAT THESE FUNCTIONS, SUCH AS



         25   PPP, TCP/IP, E-MAIL INTERFACE, AND A COUPLE OF OTHERS
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          1   MENTIONED IN THE MICROSOFT MANUAL THAT WAS RELEASED AS LATE



          2   AS AUGUST -- BUT THEY ALSO SAID AT THE SAME TIME THEY



          3   PLANNED TO SELL THE BROWSER AS PART OF AN ADDITIONAL



          4   PACKAGE, CALLED PLUS, I BELIEVE, IN AUGUST.  AND THAT WAS TO



          5   BE SOLD SEPARATELY AT A RETAIL PRICE.



          6   Q.  NOW, THIS WAS JANUARY, NOT AUGUST.  I ASKED YOU ABOUT



          7   JANUARY 1995.  ISN'T IT TRUE THAT YOUR COMPANY'S EXPECTATION



          8   AT THAT TIME WAS THAT MICROSOFT WOULD INCLUDE BROWSING



          9   FUNCTIONALITY IN THE WINDOWS OPERATING SYSTEM AT NO



         10   ADDITIONAL COST TO THE CONSUMER?



         11   A.  I HAVE SAID THAT.



         12   Q.  THANK YOU.  NOW, YOU MADE REFERENCE TO TCP/IP AND SO ON



         13   JUST NOW IN YOUR TESTIMONY.  YOU OBJECTED AT THE JUNE 21,



         14   1995 MEETING, DIDN'T YOU, TO MICROSOFT'S PURPORTED ATTEMPT



         15   TO DRAW WHAT YOU CALL A LINE BETWEEN BROWSING AND OPERATING



         16   SYSTEM?



         17   A.  NOT BETWEEN BROWSING AND OPERATING SYSTEMS.  I OBJECTED



         18   TO THEM SAYING THEY WERE GOING TO BUILD A WIN 95 BROWSER AND



         19   WE WEREN'T.  THE WAY THEY DISCUSSED IT WAS A LINE.  THEY DID



         20   NOT SAY BETWEEN THE BROWSER AND THE OPERATING SYSTEM.  THE



         21   CLEAR IMPLICATION OF THE NOTES IS IT WAS WINDOWS 95 BROWSER,



         22   AND WE WOULD GET EVERYTHING ELSE.



         23   Q.  AND WAS THERE SOME WAY THEY COULD KEEP YOU FROM BUILDING



         24   A BROWSER FOR WINDOWS 95?



         25   A.  WE ALREADY HAD BUILT A BROWSER FOR WINDOWS 95, BUT WE
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          1   WERE INHIBITED BY GETTING ALL THE FUNCTIONS WE HAD ASKED



          2   FOR.



          3   Q.  AND YOU DID NOT OBJECT AT THAT MEETING TO THE INCLUSION



          4   OF THE DIALER IN WINDOWS 95 ITSELF, EVEN THOUGH THE



          5   PRE-WINDOWS 95 VERSIONS OF NAVIGATOR HAD CONTAINED THEIR OWN



          6   DIALERS; IS THAT'S CORRECT?



          7   A.  WE HAD STOPPED IT WHEN MICROSOFT HAD TOLD US THEY WERE



          8   GOING TO INCLUDE THE DIALER; THAT IS CORRECT.



          9   Q.  AND YOU DIDN'T OBJECT TO WINDOWS 95 INCLUDING TCP/IP



         10   SUPPORT, EVEN THOUGH PRE-WINDOWS 95 VERSIONS OF NAVIGATOR



         11   HAD INCLUDED THAT THEMSELVES?



         12   A.  WE INCLUDED IT FOR THOSE OPERATING SYSTEMS THAT WE RAN



         13   ON THAT DIDN'T HAVE A TCP/IP; THAT IS CORRECT.



         14   Q.  AND YOU WANTED ALL THE NEW FUNCTIONALITY EXPOSED TO



         15   NETSCAPE BY WINSOCK?



         16   A.  AS MICROSOFT HAD ADVERTISED THEY WOULD DO, YES.



         17   Q.  AND YOU WANTED ALL THE NEW FUNCTIONALITY EXPOSED TO



         18   NETSCAPE BY THE NEW WININET API SET?



         19   A.  I DON'T REMEMBER THAT SPECIFICALLY, BUT --



         20   Q.  IN ANY EVENT, THOSE FUNCTIONALITIES WERE GOING TO BE



         21   INCLUDED IN WINDOWS 95 AND IN PREVIOUS OPERATING SYSTEMS



         22   THEY HAD NOT BEEN INCLUDED; ISN'T THAT CORRECT?



         23   A.  THAT IS CORRECT.



         24   Q.  SO THE LINE BETWEEN BROWSERS AND OPERATING SYSTEMS WAS



         25   MOVING AND HAD MOVED; IS THAT CORRECT?
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          1   A.  THERE WAS STILL A CLEAR DISTINCTION BETWEEN WHAT WAS IN



          2   THE OPERATING SYSTEM IN TERMS OF PROTOCOL STACKS AND WHAT AN



          3   APPLICATION LIKE THE BROWSER WOULD BE, WAS THEN AND IS NOW.



          4   Q.  DID YOU OBJECT WHEN YOU LEARNED THAT WINDOWS 95 WOULD



          5   INCLUDE THE ABILITY TO RENDER HTML?



          6   A.  I WAS NOT AWARE OF THAT AT THAT TIME.  I DON'T KNOW THAT



          7   I OBJECTED TO IT.



          8   Q.  AND MR. ROSEN'S DISCUSSION LIST FOR THE 6/21 MEETING



          9   EXPRESSLY SAID THAT MICROSOFT WOULD HELP NETSCAPE IN



         10   CREATING NEW VERSIONS OF ITS BROWSER FOR WINDOWS 95; DID IT



         11   NOT?



         12   A.  I DON'T REMEMBER THAT SPECIFICALLY.  IF YOU WANT TO SHOW



         13   IT TO ME --



         14   Q.  IN YOUR JUDGMENT, HOW DOES ONE APPROPRIATELY DRAW A LINE



         15   BETWEEN WHAT SHOULD AND SHOULD NOT BE INCLUDED IN AN



         16   OPERATING SYSTEM?



         17   A.  IS THAT THE QUESTION?



         18   Q.  YES.



         19   A.  FIRST OF ALL, I DON'T KNOW THAT I AM QUALIFIED TO ANSWER



         20   THAT.  THERE HAVE BEEN MANY PEOPLE WHO HAVE GIVEN OPINIONS



         21   ON THAT.  IT'S A FAIRLY STRAIGHTFORWARD EXERCISE THAT I



         22   THINK PEOPLE MORE EXPERT THAN I COULD GIVE YOU A CLEAR



         23   DEFINITION.



         24   Q.  SPECIFICALLY WITH RESPECT TO BROWSING FUNCTIONALITY, IN



         25   YOUR JUDGMENT, WHERE IS THE LINE DRAWN OR SHOULD IT BE
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          1   DRAWN?



          2   A.  AS I HAVE SAID, THE BROWSER ITSELF IS A PRODUCT THAT



          3   USES CERTAIN FUNCTIONS, OR AS MICROSOFT CALLED THEM IN



          4   WIN 95, PLUMBING, THAT THEY PROVIDED FOR PEOPLE LIKE US WHO



          5   ARE INDEPENDENT SOFTWARE VENDORS THAT PRESUMABLY THEY WANTED



          6   US TO BUILD ON TOP OF THAT PLUMBING.  AND WE DID THAT.  WE



          7   WANTED TO DO THAT.



          8             THE CLEAR DEFINITION IN THE MEETING, HOWEVER, WAS



          9   THAT WIN 95 BROWSING WAS WHAT THEY WANTED AND WE COULD DO



         10   ALL THESE OTHER THINGS.  THEY DEFINED IT.



         11   Q.  BUT YOU DID, IN FACT, BUILD A WIN 95 BROWSER?



         12   A.  ALREADY HAD BUILT IT.



         13   Q.  AND IT WORKED WELL.



         14   A.  IT DIDN'T WORK AS WELL AS WE WANTED, BECAUSE THEY



         15   WITHHELD THESE API'S?



         16   Q.  WHEN DID IT START WORKING AS WELL AS YOU WANTED?



         17   A.  THE DIAL-UP BEGAN WORKING WELL IN OCTOBER, I BELIEVE.



         18   THE REST OF THE PRODUCT WORKED WELL, WITH A FEW EXCEPTIONS



         19   THAT YOU GET IN THE FIRST RELEASE OF A PRODUCT, WITH OR



         20   ABOUT THE TIME OF THE WINDOWS 95 RELEASE.



         21   Q.  WHAT IS A BROWSER, IN YOUR DEFINITION, BESIDES THE



         22   ABILITY TO RENDER HTML?



         23   A.  A BROWSER PRODUCT WOULD INCLUDE RENDERING WINDOWS HTML



         24   AS ONE OF ITS COMPONENTS.  THERE ARE MANY OTHER FUNCTIONS



         25   AND FEATURES THAT ARE GENERALLY WELL-ACCEPTED THAT ALLOW THE
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          1   USER TO DO THAT IN A SEAMLESS WAY THAT IS LOGICAL AND HAS A



          2   MORE USER-FRIENDLY INTERFACE TO IT, SO THAT IT CAN BE DONE



          3   INTUITIVELY, WHEREAS PLUMBING, YOU WOULD HAVE TO BE ALMOST A



          4   TECHNICAL EXPERT TO USE THE PLUMBING.



          5   Q.  DIDN'T YOU TESTIFY AT YOUR DEPOSITION THAT THE LINE



          6   AROUND AN OPERATING SYSTEM COULD BE DRAWN, QUOTE, ON ONE



          7   SIDE OF THE BROWSER OR THE OTHER SIDE OF THE BROWSER, CLOSE



          8   QUOTE?



          9             THAT'S AT PAGE 207, LINE 20.



         10   A.  YES, BUT YOU HAVE TO READ THAT IN THE CONTEXT OF THE WAY



         11   I GAVE IT, WHICH WAS MUCH MORE, I THINK, INCLUSIVE.  AS I



         12   MENTIONED IN MY TESTIMONY LAST THURSDAY, YOU COULD DRAW THE



         13   LINE OVER THE BROWSER AND THE OPERATING SYSTEM FOR



         14   WINDOWS 95 OR YOU COULD DRAW IT BETWEEN THE BROWSER PRODUCT



         15   AND WINDOWS 95.



         16   Q.  OKAY.  MR. BARKSDALE, WOULD YOU TAKE OUT OF THE STACK OF



         17   EXHIBITS THERE YOUR NOTES OF THE JUNE 2 MEETING AND



         18   MR. ROSEN'S NOTES OF THE JUNE 2 MEETING?  THAT IS



         19   DEFENDANT'S EXHIBITS 42 AND 44.



         20             AND I HAVE ONE QUESTION ABOUT THE TWO EXHIBITS



         21   WHEN YOU HAVE THEM.



         22   A.  42 AND 44?



         23   Q.  42 AND 44.



         24   A.  I HAVE THEM.



         25   Q.  MY QUESTION SIMPLY IS THIS.  THERE IS NO REFERENCE IN
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          1   EITHER SET OF NOTES TO THE DIALER OR THE SCRIPTING ENGINE



          2   FOR WINDOWS 95, IS THERE?



          3   A.  WE SENT BACK TO MR. ROSEN AFTER HE SENT THIS, SAYING,



          4   "WE HEAR ALL THIS, BUT COULD WE PLEASE HAVE THE DIALER?"



          5   Q.  OKAY.  WE'LL COME TO THAT.  BUT THERE IS NO REFERENCE IN



          6   THOSE NOTES TO EITHER OF THOSE THINGS?



          7   A.  SIR, I WOULD HAVE TO LOOK IN MORE DETAIL.



          8   Q.  ALL RIGHT.



          9   A.  I MEAN, I DON'T REMEMBER EVERY WORD OF THESE.



         10   Q.  TAKE A LOOK AT DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 49, WHICH IS



         11   MR. ROSEN'S LIST OF DISCUSSION TOPICS FOR THE JUNE 21



         12   MEETING.



         13   A.  49?



         14   Q.  YES.



         15   A.  I HAVE GOT IT.



         16   Q.  THERE IS NO MENTION OF THE DIALER AND THE SCRIPTING



         17   ENGINE IN THAT DOCUMENT EITHER, IS THERE, UNLESS IT IS



         18   INCLUDED IN THE GENERALITY OF PARAGRAPH 5?



         19   A.  AGAIN, IT'S TOO LONG FOR ME TO READ ALL OF IT RIGHT NOW.



         20   IF YOU WANT, I WILL.  BUT I BELIEVE WE ALSO POINTED OUT TO



         21   HIM WE WANTED TO DISCUSS THE DIALER.



         22   Q.  OKAY.



         23             MR. WARDEN:  YOUR HONOR, I HAVE HAD PREMARKED AND



         24   NOW OFFER DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 65, WHICH IS E-MAIL FROM MARC



         25   ANDREESSEN AT NETSCAPE TO DAN ROSEN AT MICROSOFT, DATED
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          1   JUNE 20, 1995 AT 9:13 P.M.



          2             MR. BOIES:  NO OBJECTION, YOUR HONOR.



          3             THE COURT:  DEFENDANT'S 65 IS ADMITTED.



          4                                   (WHEREUPON, DEFENDANT'S



          5                                   EXHIBIT NUMBER 65 WAS



          6                                   RECEIVED IN EVIDENCE.)



          7             MR. WARDEN:  AND IT STATES THAT IT'S NETSCAPE'S



          8   NOTES ON MR. ROSEN'S LIST OF DISCUSSION TOPICS WITH A FEW



          9   SUGGESTED ADDITIONS.  AND THE THINGS WITH THREE CARETS IN



         10   FRONT OF THEM, YOUR HONOR, ARE JUST A REPEAT OF MR. ROSEN'S



         11   E-MAIL.  AND THE THINGS WITHOUT CARETS ARE MR. ANDREESSEN'S



         12   COMMENTS.



         13             THE COURT:  ALL RIGHT.



         14   BY MR. WARDEN:



         15   Q.  AND I DIRECT YOUR ATTENTION TO PARAGRAPH 7,



         16   MR. BARKSDALE.



         17   A.  IN MINE, I HAVE, I THINK, TWO PARAGRAPHS 7, SIR.  WHICH



         18   ONE?



         19   Q.  YOU DO?



         20             MR. WARDEN:  MAY I APPROACH THE WITNESS, YOUR



         21   HONOR?



         22             THE COURT:  OF COURSE.



         23             MR. WARDEN:  THANK YOU.



         24             THE WITNESS:  I PRESUME IT'S THE FIRST ONE, BUT



         25   THIS IS ALSO PARAGRAPH 7.  AND THIS IS 7.
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          1             MR. WARDEN:  YES, THANK YOU.



          2             PARAGRAPH 7 ON THE FIRST PAGE, THE BOTTOM OF THE



          3   FIRST PAGE.



          4             THE COURT:  UNDER "GENERAL."



          5             MR. WARDEN:  UNDER "GENERAL," THAT'S CORRECT, YOUR



          6   HONOR.



          7   BY MR. WARDEN:



          8   Q.  AND IN THAT PARAGRAPH, I TAKE IT MR. ANDREESSEN, ON



          9   BEHALF OF NETSCAPE, IS ADDING TO THE AGENDA THE DIALER.  IS



         10   THAT WHAT THAT IS?



         11   A.  THAT'S WHAT I WAS REFERRING TO EARLIER WHEN I SAID WE



         12   ANSWERED BACK WITH THE SUGGESTION --



         13   Q.  THAT'S WHAT I THOUGHT.



         14   A.  YES, SIR.



         15   Q.  AND THEN IF YOU GO TO PARAGRAPH 8 AT THE TOP OF THE NEXT



         16   PAGE, THAT REFERS TO THE SCRIPTING ENGINE; IS THAT RIGHT?



         17   A.  YES, SIR.



         18   Q.  SO THOSE TWO ITEMS WERE ADDED TO THE AGENDA BY NETSCAPE



         19   AT 9:13 THE NIGHT BEFORE THE MEETING; IS THAT CORRECT?



         20   A.  THEREABOUTS.  I THINK IT WOULD HAVE BEEN TWO DAYS



         21   BEFORE, BUT --



         22   Q.  THE MEETING WAS ON JUNE 21ST, WAS IT NOT?



         23   A.  WELL, MINE HERE SAYS -- OKAY.  I SEE THE TOP LIST IS



         24   6/19, BUT HIS RESPONSE WAS THE 20TH, YES.



         25   Q.  THANK YOU.
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          1             AS OF 9:13 ON THE NIGHT BEFORE THE MEETING,



          2   JUNE 20, 1995, HAD YOU, MR. ANDREESSEN, YOUR COUNSEL, OR



          3   ANYONE ELSE ACTING ON BEHALF OF NETSCAPE, BEEN IN



          4   COMMUNICATION WITH THE DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE REGARDING THE



          5   MEETING SET FOR JUNE 21ST, OR ANYTHING ELSE PERTAINING TO



          6   MICROSOFT?



          7   A.  PRIOR TO THAT MEETING?



          8   Q.  THAT'S CORRECT.  WELL, PRIOR TO 9:13 ON THE NIGHT



          9   BEFORE.



         10   A.  ON ANY SUBJECT?



         11   Q.  WELL, LET'S FIRST START WITH THE MEETING SET FOR JUNE



         12   21ST.



         13   A.  I DON'T KNOW THAT WE HAD, NO, SIR.



         14   Q.  DO YOU KNOW ONE WAY OR THE OTHER?



         15   A.  I DO NOT KNOW.



         16   Q.  HOW ABOUT ANYTHING ELSE PERTAINING TO MICROSOFT PRIOR TO



         17   9:13 P.M. ON JUNE 20, 1995?



         18   A.  AGAIN, AS I TESTIFIED, WE HAD GOTTEN, I BELIEVE, A



         19   C.I.D. FROM THE DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE SOMEWHERE AROUND THERE



         20   ON THE MATTER OF AOL AND MAY HAVE RESPONDED TO THAT.  I



         21   DON'T REMEMBER.



         22   Q.  WHAT DOES "SOMEWHERE AROUND THERE" MEAN?  WAS IT BEFORE?



         23   A.  WITHIN THAT TIMEFRAME.  I DON'T KNOW.  I DON'T HAVE THAT



         24   DOCUMENT.  WE MAY HAVE.



         25   Q.  YOU WOULD BE ADVISED WHEN THE COMPANY RECEIVED A C.I.D.,
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          1   WOULD YOU NOT?



          2   A.  I WOULD.



          3   Q.  WHO IS MITCHELL BAKER?



          4   A.  MITCHELL IS ONE OF OUR ATTORNEYS, IN-HOUSE LAWYERS.



          5   Q.  DID MR. BAKER RECEIVE A COPY OF --?



          6   A.  IT'S MS. BAKER.



          7   Q.  MS.  I AM SORRY.  YOU NEVER CAN TELL WITH SOME NAMES,



          8   BUT I APOLOGIZE.  MS. BAKER.



          9             DID MS. BAKER RECEIVE A COPY OF MR. ANDREESSEN'S



         10   NOTES, SO-CALLED, OF THE JUNE 21 MEETING SHORTLY AFTER THEY



         11   WERE PREPARED?



         12   A.  MR. ANDREESSEN'S NOTES AFTER THE MEETING?



         13   Q.  YES.



         14   A.  SHE MAY HAVE.  I DON'T KNOW.



         15   Q.  WHO IS DAVID KILLAM?



         16   A.  I DON'T KNOW.  HE MAY BE IN OUR LEGAL DEPARTMENT.  I



         17   DON'T KNOW THE NAME.



         18   Q.  IF I SUGGEST TO YOU THAT HE IS A LAWYER AT THE WILSON



         19   SONSINI FIRM WHERE MR. REBACK WORKS, DOES THAT REFRESH YOUR



         20   RECOLLECTION?



         21   A.  NO, SIR, I DON'T BELIEVE.  I KNEW MOST OF THEIR LAWYERS



         22   OVER THERE.  I KNEW MR. REBACK.



         23             MR. WARDEN:  YOUR HONOR, I OFFER WHAT I HAVE HAD



         24   PREMARKED AS DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 67 FOR IDENTIFICATION, AN



         25   E-MAIL ON THURSDAY, JUNE 22, AT 2:30 A.M. FROM MARC
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          1   ANDREESSEN, TO DKILLAMM@WSGR.COM -- WHICH I THINK IS,



          2   INDISPUTABLY, WILSON SONSINI -- AND MITCHELL.



          3             MR. BOIES:  IS THIS A ONE-PAGE DOCUMENT?



          4             MR. WARDEN:  YES.



          5             MR. BOIES:  NO OBJECTION, YOUR HONOR.



          6             THE COURT:  DEFENDANT'S 67 IS ADMITTED.



          7                                   (WHEREUPON, DEFENDANT'S



          8                                   EXHIBIT NUMBER 67 WAS



          9                                   RECEIVED IN EVIDENCE.)



         10   BY MR. WARDEN:



         11   Q.  NOW THAT IS THE -- IT SAYS THE SUBJECT IS A NOTE FROM



         12   PRIOR TO TODAY'S MEETING, SO THAT MUST BE THE E-MAIL FROM



         13   MR. ANDREESSEN ADDING ITEMS TO THE DISCUSSION LIST THAT WE



         14   SAW A FEW MINUTES AGO; IS THAT RIGHT?



         15   A.  IT APPEARS TO BE, YES.



         16   Q.  NOW, WHY WOULD MR. ANDREESSEN BE SENDING -- IF YOU



         17   KNOW -- BE SENDING THOSE -- THAT MATERIAL TO BOTH



         18   INSIDE-AND-OUTSIDE COUNSEL IN THE MIDDLE OF THE NIGHT



         19   FOLLOWING THE MEETING?



         20   A.  I DON'T KNOW.



         21             MR. WARDEN:  I NOW OFFER, YOUR HONOR, SOLELY FOR



         22   ONE POINT IN IT, DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 66 FOR IDENTIFICATION,



         23   WHICH IS A COMPANY OF MR. ANDREESSEN'S SO-CALLED MEETING



         24   NOTES THAT HAVE BEEN ALREADY INTRODUCED BY THE GOVERNMENT.



         25   BUT THIS COPY VARIES IN ONE RESPECT, AND I HASTEN TO ADD
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          1   THAT I DON'T SUGGEST THAT THAT VARIANCE IS ATTRIBUTABLE TO



          2   ANY NEFARIOUS ACT ON ANYONE'S PART.



          3             MR. BOIES:  NO OBJECTION, YOUR HONOR.



          4             THE COURT:  66 IS ADMITTED.



          5                                   (WHEREUPON, DEFENDANT'S



          6                                   EXHIBIT NUMBER 66 WAS



          7                                   RECEIVED IN EVIDENCE.)



          8   BY MR. WARDEN:



          9   Q.  DO YOU RECOGNIZE THESE AS MR. ANDREESSEN'S SUPPOSED NOTE



         10   OF THE JUNE 21 MEETING?



         11   A.  I DO.



         12   Q.  AND I DIRECT THE WITNESS' ATTENTION AND THE COURT'S



         13   ATTENTION TO THE "TO: LINE" -- WHICH IS FOUR LINES UP FROM



         14   THE SPACE ABOVE MICROSOFT ATTENDEES.



         15             DO YOU SEE THAT, MR. BARKSDALE?



         16   A.  YES, I DO.



         17   Q.  AND THAT MITCHELL IS SHOWN THERE AS RECEIVING A COPY OF



         18   THIS, AS WELL AS YOU, MR. HOMER -- AND WHO ARE "JIMC" AND



         19   "RAM"?



         20   A.  "JIMC" WOULD BE JIM CLARK AND "RAM" WOULD BE RAM



         21   SHRIRAM.



         22   Q.  AND "MITCHELL" IS?



         23   A.  THE SAME LAWYER THAT WE MENTIONED A WHILE AGO, MITCHELL



         24   BAKER.



         25   Q.  NOW, DO YOU KNOW WHY MR. ANDREESSEN WAS SENDING THESE
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          1   NOTES TO MS. MITCHELL AT JUST A LITTLE BEFORE 8:00 ON THE



          2   NIGHT OF THE MEETING?



          3   A.  I DON'T KNOW.



          4   Q.  HAD MS. BAKER OR MR. KILLAM BEEN IN CONTACT WITH THE



          5   DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE PRIOR TO THE TIME MR. ANDREESSEN



          6   FURNISHED THEM WITH OR FURNISHED MS. BAKER WITH THE NOTES OF



          7   THE MEETING AND BOTH COUNSEL WITH THE LIST OF DISCUSSION



          8   ITEMS?



          9   A.  I DON'T KNOW.



         10   Q.  ARE YOU AWARE THAT NETSCAPE RECEIVED A CIVIL



         11   INVESTIGATIVE DEMAND FROM THE DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE ON



         12   JUNE 22, 1995, THE DAY AFTER THE MEETING?



         13   A.  AGAIN, I WOULDN'T KNOW THAT.  THE DATE, I DON'T KNOW.



         14   WE MAY HAVE.



         15   Q.  YOU WOULD BE ADVISED IF SUCH A DOCUMENT WERE RECEIVED?



         16   A.  I WOULD.  I AM JUST SAYING THAT I CAN'T REMEMBER A DAY



         17   AT A TIME GOING BACK FOUR YEARS.



         18   Q.  DO YOU RECALL EVER BEING SURPRISED WHEN YOU RECEIVED A



         19   C.I.D.?



         20   A.  IN WHAT SENSE?



         21   Q.  OUT OF THE BLUE; WHY DID WE GET THIS?



         22   A.  I DON'T KNOW THAT I HAD THOSE KINDS OF FEELINGS, NO.



         23             MR. WARDEN:  YOUR HONOR, THE GOVERNMENT HAS



         24   SUPPLIED TO US OVER THE WEEKEND A DOCUMENT WHICH HAS GIVEN



         25   RISE TO A MOTION -- THAT I HAVE NO DESIRE TO GET INTO AT
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          1   THIS TIME SINCE THEY HAVEN'T REPLIED -- THAT IS MARKED BY



          2   THEM FOR INTRODUCTION AS GOVERNMENT'S EXHIBITS 1259 AND



          3   1260 -- THERE ARE TWO DOCUMENTS -- WHICH I WOULD LIKE TO



          4   OFFER AT THIS TIME WITH RESPECT TO 1259 -- I SEE NO REASON



          5   TO PUT A DIFFERENT NUMBER ON IT -- I OFFER THAT NOT FOR THE



          6   TRUTH OF ANYTHING CONTAINED THEREIN, BUT SOLELY TO SHOW THE



          7   COURSE OF DEALINGS BETWEEN NETSCAPE AND THE PLAINTIFFS.



          8             THE COURT:  ALL RIGHT.  DO YOU WANT TO DESCRIBE IT



          9   FOR THE RECORD?



         10             MR. WARDEN:  YES.  IT IS -- 1259 IS A LETTER DATED



         11   JUNE 23, 1995, ADDRESSED TO -- I HAVE ONLY A FAXED COPY --



         12   BUT IT LOOKS LIKE JON, J-O-N, B. JACOBS, ESQUIRE, AT THE



         13   ANTITRUST DIVISION.  IT'S ON THE LETTERHEAD OF WILSON



         14   SONSINI GOODRICH AND ROSATI.



         15             IT'S FOUR PAGES LONG, AND IT'S SIGNED BY GARY



         16   REBACK, SHOWING COPIES TO JOEL KLEIN, ESQUIRE AND JOHN F.



         17   GREANEY, ESQUIRE.  NUMBER 1260 -- I AM SORRY.  THAT



         18   INCLUDES -- ANOTHER COPY OF MR. ANDREESSEN'S NOTES FOLLOW



         19   THAT AS PART OF THE SAME DOCUMENT, YOUR HONOR.



         20             THEN 1260 IS CIVIL INVESTIGATIVE DEMAND NUMBER



         21   13202, ADDRESSED BY THE ANTITRUST DIVISION TO NETSCAPE



         22   COMMUNICATIONS, SIGNED BY JOEL KLEIN BUT DIRECTING



         23   COMPLIANCE TO JON B. JACOBS, AND DATED THE 22ND DAY OF JUNE,



         24   1995.



         25             MR. BOIES:  NO OBJECTION, YOUR HONOR.
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          1             THE COURT:  ARE YOU OFFERING THEM NOW?



          2             MR. WARDEN:  YES.  I OFFER 1260 IN GENERAL AND



          3   1259 FOR THE LIMITED PURPOSE I STATED, YOUR HONOR.



          4             THE COURT:  ALL RIGHT.  1259 AND 1260 ARE



          5   ADMITTED.



          6                                   (WHEREUPON, PLAINTIFFS'



          7                                   EXHIBIT NUMBERS 1259 AND



          8                                   1260 WERE RECEIVED IN



          9                                   EVIDENCE.)



         10   BY MR. WARDEN:



         11   Q.  MR. BARKSDALE, WASN'T IT IN FACT YOUR COUNSEL, INSIDE OR



         12   OUT, WHO SUGGESTED TO YOU OR MR. ANDREESSEN THAT



         13   MR. ANDREESSEN TAKE NOTES AT THE JUNE 21 MEETING?



         14   A.  THAT'S NOT MY UNDERSTANDING.



         15   Q.  DIDN'T YOUR COUNSEL, IN FACT, REQUEST THE DEPARTMENT OF



         16   JUSTICE TO ISSUE THE C.I.D., WHICH BEARS GOVERNMENT EXHIBIT



         17   NUMBER 1260, THE VERY DAY AFTER THAT MEETING OCCURRED?



         18   A.  NOT THAT I AM AWARE OF.



         19   Q.  WOULD YOU KNOW?



         20   A.  I MIGHT; I MIGHT NOT.



         21   Q.  HAVE YOU ASKED MS. KATZ?



         22   A.  NO, I HAVE NOT.



         23   Q.  NOW, IN YOUR DIRECT TESTIMONY, YOU'VE STATED LOTS OF



         24   INFORMATION THAT HAS COME TO YOU -- NOT FROM DIRECT



         25   KNOWLEDGE, BUT FROM OTHERS IN YOUR ORGANIZATION; ISN'T THAT
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          1   CORRECT?



          2   A.  YES.



          3   Q.  I REQUEST THAT AT THE FIRST RECESS YOU ASK MS. KATZ



          4   WHETHER, IN FACT, WHAT I HAVE SAID IS NOT THE TRUTH.



          5             WHO DIRECTED MR. REBACK TO PREPARE THE RESPONSE



          6   WHICH BEARS GOVERNMENT EXHIBIT NUMBER 1259?



          7   A.  I DON'T KNOW.



          8   Q.  YOU WERE THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER OF THE COMPANY,



          9   RIGHT?



         10   A.  I WAS.



         11   Q.  AND I BELIEVE YOU HAVE GIVEN TESTIMONY TO THE EFFECT



         12   THAT MOST OF THE PEOPLE WHO WORKED FOR YOU WERE -- I DON'T



         13   WANT TO USE TOO PEJORATIVE A TERM, BUT VERY YOUNG, OR



         14   CHILDREN, OR SOMETHING LIKE THAT?



         15   A.  I DON'T THINK I EVER CALLED THEM CHILDREN.



         16   Q.  OKAY.  VERY YOUNG; IS THAT FAIR?



         17   A.  THAT IS CORRECT.



         18   Q.  AND WHEN THE UNITED STATES GOVERNMENT SERVES COMPULSORY



         19   PROCESS ON YOUR COMPANY, DON'T YOU TAKE A ROLE IN



         20   DETERMINING HOW THAT PROCESS IS GOING TO BE RESPONDED TO?



         21   A.  NOTHING OTHER THAN SAY I TRUST WE'LL RESPOND TO IT.



         22   Q.  AND YOU DON'T CARE WHO RESPONDS TO IT?



         23   A.  I DIDN'T SAY THAT.  MY ASSUMPTION IS MS. KATZ KNOWS MORE



         24   ABOUT HOW TO DO THAT THAN I WOULD OR WHOEVER WAS INSTRUCTED



         25   TO RESPOND TO IT, A LAWYER.  I AM NOT A LAWYER, AND I DON'T
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          1   KNOW HOW YOU RESPOND TO A C.I.D.



          2   Q.  WERE ALL OF NETSCAPE'S DEALINGS WITH MR. REBACK



          3   UNDERTAKEN BY MS. KATZ?



          4   A.  I DON'T KNOW THAT TO BE TRUE.



          5   Q.  DID YOU EVER MEET MR. REBACK?



          6   A.  YES, I HAVE.



          7   Q.  AND ON HOW MANY OCCASIONS?



          8   A.  I DON'T KNOW, COUNSELOR.  SEVERAL TIMES.  PROBABLY FEWER



          9   THAN TEN AND MORE THAN FOUR OR FIVE OVER FOUR YEARS.



         10   Q.  DID YOU MEET WITH MR. REBACK WITH RESPECT TO THE



         11   JUNE 21, 1995 MEETING?



         12   A.  I DON'T KNOW.  I DON'T BELIEVE THAT I DID.



         13   Q.  WHERE DID MR. REBACK OBTAIN THE INFORMATION THAT'S SET



         14   FORTH IN GOVERNMENT'S EXHIBIT 1259?



         15   A.  I DON'T KNOW.



         16   Q.  WERE YOU INVOLVED IN ANY WAY IN THE PREPARATION OF



         17   GOVERNMENT EXHIBIT 1259?



         18   A.  I DON'T THINK THAT I WAS.



         19   Q.  DO YOU KNOW WHO, OTHER THAN MR. REBACK, WAS?



         20   A.  NO, I DON'T.



         21   Q.  YOUR COUNSEL, MS. BAKER, HAD RECEIVED MR. ANDREESSEN'S



         22   NOTES THE NIGHT BEFORE THE C.I.D. WAS ISSUED, HADN'T SHE?



         23   A.  I THINK THAT'S WHAT THE DATES SAY.  I HAVE NO WAY OF



         24   DOUBTING THAT OR KNOWING THAT.



         25   Q.  AND BOTH SHE AND WILSON SONSINI HAD RECEIVED THE
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          1   DISCUSSION LIST -- THE FULL ONE, WITH MR. ANDREESSEN'S



          2   ADDITIONS -- BEFORE THE C.I.D. WAS RECEIVED, HADN'T THEY?



          3   A.  AGAIN, COUNSELOR, I MEAN, I AM LOOKING AT THE DATES



          4   HERE -- LIKE YOU ARE -- IN SOME CASES FOR THE FIRST TIME



          5   HERE.  I WILL TAKE YOUR WORD FOR THE DATES.  THE DATES SPEAK



          6   FOR THEMSELVES AND THE DOCUMENTS SPEAK FOR THEMSELVES.



          7   Q.  ISN'T IT A FACT, MR. BARKSDALE, THAT THE JUNE 21, 1995



          8   MEETING WAS HELD FOR THE PURPOSE OF CREATING SOMETHING THAT



          9   COULD BE CALLED A RECORD AND DELIVERED TO THE DEPARTMENT OF



         10   JUSTICE TO SPUR THEM ON TO ACTION AGAINST MICROSOFT?



         11   A.  THAT'S ABSURD.



         12   Q.  ISN'T IT A FACT THAT YOUR COUNSEL HAD BEGUN PREPARING A



         13   RESPONSE TO THE C.I.D. BEFORE THE MEETING EVEN OCCURRED?



         14   A.  I DON'T KNOW THAT.



         15   Q.  DO YOU HAVE ANY IDEA WHY NEITHER GOVERNMENT EXHIBIT



         16   1259, MR. REBACK'S LETTER OF JUNE 23RD, NOR DEFENDANT'S



         17   EXHIBIT 1, HIS LETTER OF JULY 28, WAS PRODUCED TO US IN



         18   DISCOVERY BY NETSCAPE?



         19   A.  NO, I DON'T.



         20   Q.  HOW ABOUT THE C.I.D., GOVERNMENT EXHIBIT 1260?



         21   A.  I DON'T KNOW WHY THAT WOULD OR WOULD NOT HAVE BEEN



         22   PRESENTED.



         23             MR. WARDEN:  YOUR HONOR, WITH RESPECT TO



         24   NUMBER 1259 -- GOVERNMENT EXHIBIT 1259 -- WHICH THE COURT



         25   WILL HAVE AN OPPORTUNITY TO READ AT LENGTH, I NOTE ONLY AT
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          1   THIS TIME THAT THERE IS NO REFERENCE IN THE LETTER TO A



          2   STUNNING EXPLICIT MARKET DIVISION PROPOSAL HAVING BEEN MADE



          3   AT THE JUNE 21 MEETING.



          4             MR. BOIES:  YOUR HONOR, I OBJECT TO THAT



          5   MISCHARACTERIZATION OF THE DOCUMENT.  I WILL COVER IT WITH



          6   THE WITNESS ON REDIRECT.



          7             THE COURT:  THE DOCUMENT WILL SPEAK FOR ITSELF.



          8             MR. WARDEN:  YOUR HONOR, AT THIS TIME, I OFFER TWO



          9   DOCUMENTS RELATING TO THE LINE OF QUESTIONING LAST WEEK WITH



         10   RESPECT TO LINUX THAT I FORGOT TO OFFER AT THE TIME,



         11   DEFENDANT'S EXHIBITS 50 AND 51.



         12             50 IS AN ARTICLE DATED OCTOBER 5, 1998 FROM



         13   INTER@CTIVE WEEK ONLINE, WHICH COMES FROM THE INTEL WEB SITE



         14   ON ZDNET.  I HAVE NO QUESTIONS.  I JUST POINT OUT THAT THIS



         15   DOCUMENT LISTS BOTH INTEL AND NETSCAPE AS SUPPORTERS OF



         16   LINUX AND INFORMIX CORP. AND ORACLE CORP. AS WELL.



         17             AND THEN THERE IS NETSCAPE PRESS RELEASE DATED



         18   JULY 21, 1998, THAT'S DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 51, WHICH ALSO



         19   DISCUSSES NETSCAPE'S SUPPORT FOR LINUX.



         20             MR. BOIES:  MAY I INQUIRE OF COUNSEL WHETHER HE IS



         21   OFFERING DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 50 FOR THE TRUTH OF THE MATTERS



         22   ASSERTED THEREIN?



         23             MR. WARDEN:  I AM.



         24             MR. BOIES:  OBJECTION, YOUR HONOR.



         25             NO OBJECTION TO EXHIBIT 51.
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          1             THE COURT:  ALL RIGHT.  DEFENDANT'S 51 IS



          2   ADMITTED.



          3                                   (WHEREUPON, DEFENDANT'S



          4                                   EXHIBIT NUMBER 51 WAS



          5                                   RECEIVED IN EVIDENCE.)



          6             THE COURT:  WHAT'S YOUR THEORY FOR ADMITTING 50?



          7             MR. WARDEN:  YOUR HONOR, GIVEN THE NEWSPAPER



          8   ARTICLES AND SO FORTH THAT WERE ATTACHED TO THE WITNESS'



          9   DIRECT TESTIMONY AND ADMITTED, I THINK THIS IS CLEARLY



         10   ADMISSIBLE.  BUT, IN ANY EVENT, IT REFERS TO NETSCAPE, AND



         11   IF THE FACTS IN IT ARE INCORRECT IN ANY FASHION, COUNSEL CAN



         12   TEST THEM ON REDIRECT EXAMINATION.



         13             AND HE HAS -- THE WITNESS TESTIFIED ABOUT RED HAT



         14   SOFTWARE.  AND I BELIEVE HE SAID HE WAS UNCERTAIN WHETHER HE



         15   HAD BEEN CONFUSING INTEL AND ORACLE.  AND I THINK THIS



         16   ARTICLE MAKES IT CLEAR THAT BOTH OF THEM ARE INVOLVED IN



         17   SUPPORT FOR LINUX.



         18             THE COURT:  THE BASIS OF THE OBJECTION IS HEARSAY;



         19   IS THAT CORRECT?



         20             MR. BOIES:  YES, YOUR HONOR.



         21             THE COURT:  ALL RIGHT.  THE OBJECTION IS



         22   OVERRULED.  I WILL ADMIT IT FOR WHAT IT'S WORTH.



         23                                   (WHEREUPON, DEFENDANT'S



         24                                   EXHIBIT NUMBER 50 WAS



         25                                   RECEIVED IN EVIDENCE.)
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          1   BY MR. WARDEN:



          2   Q.  DO YOU HAVE A COPY OF DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 50,



          3   MR. BARKSDALE?



          4   A.  YES, I DO.



          5   Q.  DOES THIS DOCUMENT REFRESH YOUR RECOLLECTION THAT BOTH



          6   INTEL AND ORACLE ARE INVOLVED IN SUPPORTING LINUX?



          7   A.  AGAIN, AS I SAID THE OTHER DAY, I DON'T REMEMBER



          8   SPECIFICALLY THAT INTEL DID.  THEY MAY.  AND I THINK THERE



          9   PROBABLY IS A WAY OF DETERMINING THAT.



         10             I DO REMEMBER ORACLE AND I DON'T REMEMBER INTEL,



         11   BUT I DON'T DENY IT.



         12   Q.  THANK YOU.



         13             PLEASE TURN TO PAGE 43 OF YOUR DIRECT TESTIMONY,



         14   THE BOTTOM OF PARAGRAPH 76 WHERE YOU MAKE REFERENCE TO THE



         15   CREATION OF A CROSS-PLATFORM BROWSER.  DO YOU SEE THAT?



         16   A.  PARAGRAPH 77?



         17   Q.  NO.  76, THE LAST LINE.



         18   A.  YES.  I SEE THAT.



         19   Q.  DID NETSCAPE ATTEMPT TO DEVELOP BROWSING SOFTWARE



         20   EXCLUSIVELY IN JAVA SO THAT IT WOULD BE TRULY



         21   CROSS-PLATFORM?



         22   A.  DEFINE "EXCLUSIVELY IN JAVA."  YOU MEAN TO THE EXCLUSION



         23   OF OUR OTHER BROWSER PRODUCTS?



         24   Q.  NO, NO, NO.  NOT TO THE EXCLUSION OF ANYTHING ELSE.



         25   WRITTEN ONLY -- A PRODUCT WRITTEN ONLY IN JAVA.
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          1   A.  YES.



          2   Q.  AND DID YOU MAKE THE PUBLIC COMMENT THAT NETSCAPE'S



          3   TOTAL JAVA-ENABLED NAVIGATOR WILL BE ABLE TO RUN THESE NEW



          4   P.C.-LIKE DEVICES WHERE YOU DON'T HAVE AN OPERATING SYSTEM



          5   IN OR ABOUT SEPTEMBER 1997?



          6   A.  THEY WOULD HAVE AN OPERATING SYSTEM, BUT I MAY HAVE SAID



          7   THAT, IMPLYING THAT WHEN WE WOULD GET THEM, THEY WOULDN'T



          8   HAVE AN OPERATING -- ALL P.C. DEVICES, BE THEY



          9   MICROPROCESSOR OF ANY DESIGN, REQUIRE SOME OPERATING SYSTEM



         10   FUNCTION.



         11   Q.  IS THAT TRUE OF NETWORK COMPUTERS?



         12   A.  YES, IT IS.  IT REQUIRES A JAVA OS, OPERATING SYSTEM.



         13   Q.  WHAT IS A JAVA OS?



         14   A.  IT'S AN OPERATING SYSTEM THAT IS BENEATH THE JAVA



         15   VIRTUAL MACHINE THAT GIVES YOU THE CAPABILITY OF RUNNING



         16   JAVA.  IT MAY ALSO SIT ON TOP OF A KERNEL OR A VERY SMALL



         17   OPERATING SYSTEM FUNCTION IN ADDITION TO THAT.  VARIOUS NC



         18   DEVICES HAVE DIFFERENT KERNELS OR OPERATING SYSTEMS.



         19   Q.  HOW MANY NETWORK COMPUTERS HAVE BEEN SOLD SO FAR?



         20   A.  AS I THINK I TOLD YOU THE OTHER DAY, IT'S OVER A HUNDRED



         21   THOUSAND, PROBABLY, MOST OF WHICH, AS I UNDERSTAND IT, ARE



         22   FROM IBM, AND PROBABLY LESS THAN 500,000.



         23   Q.  AND DID YOU TELL INVESTOR'S BUSINESS DAILY OR ANOTHER



         24   PUBLICATION IN SEPTEMBER 1997, THAT THE TOTAL JAVA-ENABLED



         25   NAVIGATOR WAS DUE IN THE FIRST QUARTER OF 1998?
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          1   A.  I BELIEVE I DID.  I MAY HAVE.  THAT WAS OUR HOPE.



          2   Q.  OKAY.  WE'RE NOW IN THE FOURTH QUARTER OF 1998.  HAVE



          3   YOU INTRODUCED THE TOTAL JAVA-ENABLED NAVIGATOR?



          4   A.  NO, SIR.  WE CANCELLED IT WHEN WE HAD TO CANCEL MOST OF



          5   OUR -- SOME NEW PLANS FOR THE BROWSER AS A RESULT OF



          6   DOWNSIZING OUR STAFF AS A RESULT OF MAKING THE CLIENT FREE



          7   AND CUTTING BACK ON OUR EXPENDITURES.



          8   Q.  HOW MUCH MONEY DID NETSCAPE SPEND TRYING TO DEVELOP THE



          9   TOTAL JAVA-ENABLED NAVIGATOR?



         10   A.  I THINK I TESTIFIED IN MY DEPOSITION SEVERAL HUNDRED



         11   THOUSAND DOLLARS.  MAYBE LESS AND A MILLION DOLLARS; MAYBE



         12   MORE.  SOMEWHERE IN THAT NEIGHBORHOOD.  AND WE DID PRODUCE A



         13   PRODUCT, BUT IT WASN'T IN TOTAL AND COMPLETE.  AND WE'RE NOW



         14   ACTUALLY, YOU KNOW, WILLING AND WANTING TO SELL THE



         15   INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY AND THE ONE-TIME ENGINEERING COST



         16   ASSOCIATED WITH IT TO VARIOUS COMPANIES.



         17             THE COURT:  WHY DID YOU SAY YOU HAD TO CANCEL?



         18             THE WITNESS:  WELL, WHEN WE -- AT THE END OF '97,



         19   WE HAD A VERY BAD QUARTER AS A RESULT OF LOSING DRAMATICALLY



         20   ON OUR BROWSER REVENUE.  AND SO BEGINNING THE FIRST WEEK OF



         21   '98, WE CANCELLED A LOT OF PLANS AND LAID OFF ABOUT 10



         22   PERCENT OF OUR STAFF, ABOUT HALF OF WHOM WERE ENGINEERS, AND



         23   HALF WERE IN SALES AND MARKETING AND OTHER AREAS.



         24             AND WE HAD TO PARE DOWN VARIOUS PROJECTS.  AND WE



         25   DECIDED TO PARE THAT ONE DOWN BECAUSE OF ITS VALUE TO US
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          1   VERSUS THE OTHER THINGS WE COULD WORK ON.



          2   BY MR. WARDEN:



          3   Q.  HOW MUCH DID NETSCAPE SPEND ON COMMUNICATOR 6.0?



          4   A.  I DON'T KNOW, COUNSEL.  I WOULD BE GUESSING.  I DON'T



          5   KNOW.



          6   Q.  HOW MUCH DID YOU SPEND ON PROJECT XENA?



          7   A.  AGAIN, I DON'T KNOW.



          8   Q.  HOW MUCH DID NETSCAPE SPEND ON PROJECT MAGELLAN?



          9   A.  WELL, WE'RE STILL SPENDING MONEY ON PROJECT MAGELLAN,



         10   BUT IT WOULD BE -- PROBABLY BY NOW IN EXCESS OF A MILLION



         11   AND MAYBE AS MUCH AS 10 MILLION, BUT PROBABLY CLOSER TO 6 OR



         12   7.  WE'RE STILL UNDERWAY WITH THAT PROJECT, SIR.



         13   Q.  DIDN'T PROJECT MAGELLAN INVOLVE WRITING THE



         14   COMMUNICATOR 6.0 LAYOUT ENGINE ENTIRELY IN JAVA?



         15   A.  IT INVOLVED, AND STILL DOES INVOLVE WRITING THE LAYOUT



         16   ENGINE AS A NEW PRODUCT, WHICH WE HAVE NOW DONE AND RENAMED



         17   IT RAPTOR, BUT IT'S THE SAME CONCEPT OF CREATING A NEW



         18   RENDERING ENGINE.



         19   Q.  AND WILL THAT BE A JAVA-ENABLED NAVIGATOR?



         20   A.  NO, SIR, IT WON'T.



         21   Q.  WHAT IS IT?



         22   A.  WELL, THE TERM "RENDERING" JUST MEANS HOW YOU PRESENT



         23   THE IMAGE ON THE SCREEN AND THEN HOW YOU CAN RESIZE IT,



         24   REFORMAT IT, AND MOVE IT QUICKLY, SO IF YOU MOVE THE CURSOR



         25   TO EXPAND THE SCREEN, THAT MAY LOOK SIMPLE ON THE FACE OF A
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          1   GRAPHICAL USER INTERFACE, BUT IT'S ALL DONE WITH A



          2   MATHEMATICAL FORMULA.  AND THE OLD FORMULA FOR RENDERING



          3   WHICH HAD BEEN USED BY A NUMBER OF PEOPLE, WE HAD COME UP



          4   WITH -- WE THOUGHT OF A PRETTY SLICK NEW FORMULA THAT LETS



          5   YOU JUST MOVE IT MUCH QUICKER, SO IT'S LIVELIER AND IT'S



          6   BETTER PRESENTATION.



          7             AND IT IS THEN ABLE TO MAKE IT A QUICKER,



          8   PRETTIER, MORE EXITING INTERFACE OR USER INTERFACE.  MAYBE I



          9   HAVE ADDED A FEW MORE WORDS THAN I SHOULD, BUT THAT'S AS



         10   SIMPLE A DEFINITION AS I CAN GIVE YOU.



         11   Q.  ISN'T IT TRUE THAT THE LAYOUT ENGINE FOR



         12   COMMUNICATOR 6.0 ORIGINALLY WAS TO BE WRITTEN IN JAVA AND



         13   THEN WAS CHANGED TO C++?



         14   A.  YES, THAT'S WHAT I WAS SAYING.



         15   Q.  OKAY.  I AM SORRY.  I DIDN'T UNDERSTAND THAT.



         16   A.  THAT'S ALL RIGHT.



         17   Q.  WAS THE TOTAL JAVA-ENABLED NAVIGATOR ALSO SOMETIMES



         18   REFERRED TO AS A "JAVAGATOR"?



         19   A.  IT WAS.  I COINED THAT TERM AND I'M VERY PROUD OF IT.



         20   Q.  HOW LONG DID NETSCAPE SPEND TRYING TO WRITE WEB BROWSING



         21   SOFTWARE PURELY IN JAVA?



         22   A.  COUNSELOR, IT WOULD PROBABLY BE A PERIOD OF MAYBE A YEAR



         23   TO 18 MONTHS OR LESS.  IT MAY HAVE BEEN A LITTLE LESS THAN A



         24   YEAR; IT MAY BE A LITTLE MORE, I CAN'T REMEMBER EXACTLY.



         25   WE'VE HAD VARIOUS JAVA PROJECTS UNDERWAY THAT THE



�

                                                                              35



          1   ENGINEERING TEAMS HAVE EXPERIMENTED WITH.



          2   Q.  AND ISN'T IT TRUE THAT THAT PROJECT WAS ABANDONED



          3   BECAUSE OF PERFORMANCE PROBLEMS, NOTABLY THE SPEED AT WHICH



          4   THE PRODUCT RAN?



          5   A.  NO.



          6   Q.  ISN'T IT TRUE THAT NETSCAPE REDUCED ITS FOCUS ON JAVA



          7   AND INCREASED ITS FOCUS ON C++ BECAUSE ITS OWN ENGINEERS



          8   CONCLUDED THAT C++ WAS MORE PRACTICAL AS AN IMPLEMENTATION



          9   LANGUAGE FOR NAVIGATOR THAN JAVA WAS?



         10   A.  THAT'S WHAT I SAID.  WHEN WE CUT BACK EXPENSES, WE WERE



         11   TRYING TO COME UP WITH THE CHEAPEST POSSIBLE WAY AND THE



         12   QUICKEST DELIVERY, AND WENT BACK TO C++.



         13   Q.  AND THAT'S BECAUSE YOUR ENGINEERS CONCLUDED THAT THEY



         14   WERE ABLE TO WRITE MORE EFFICIENT CODE THAT EXECUTES QUICKER



         15   WHEN THEY WRITE IN C++ RATHER THAN JAVA?



         16   A.  AT THE POINT IN TIME, IT WOULD HAVE BEEN MORE EFFICIENT



         17   AND PERHAPS QUICKER, BUT IT WOULD NOT NECESSARILY ALWAYS BE



         18   QUICKER.



         19   Q.  ISN'T IT TRUE THAT WINDOWS 95 AND 98 ARE WRITTEN



         20   PRIMARILY IN C++?



         21   A.  I BELIEVE THEY ARE, YES.  JAVA WASN'T AVAILABLE WITH



         22   WINDOWS 95.



         23   Q.  AND ISN'T IT TRUE THAT YOU CONCLUDED IT WAS NOT



         24   POSSIBLE, IN ANY COMMERCIALLY PRACTICABLE WAY, TO WRITE



         25   COMMERCIALLY VIABLE BROWSING SOFTWARE IN JAVA?
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          1   A.  THERE MAY HAVE BEEN SOMEONE WHO THOUGHT THAT.  I DON'T



          2   KNOW THAT WE'VE CONCLUDED THAT TO THIS DAY.  IT'S MAYBE JUST



          3   NOT READY FOR PRIME TIME.  AT THE TIME THAT WAS DECIDED, I



          4   THINK WOULD PROBABLY BE A MORE ACCURATE DEPICTION OF WHAT



          5   THE ENGINEERS DECIDED.



          6   Q.  ISN'T IT TRUE THAT THE MOST RECENT BETA RELEASE OF



          7   COMMUNICATOR CONTAINS MORE WINDOWS-SPECIFIC CODE THAN ANY



          8   PRIOR NETSCAPE WEB BROWSING SOFTWARE?



          9   A.  YOU WOULD HAVE TO ASK AN ENGINEER THAT.



         10   Q.  DID MARC ANDREESSEN PUBLICLY ANNOUNCE IN JUNE OR JULY OF



         11   1998 THAT JAVAGATOR IS DEAD?



         12   A.  I JUST TOLD YOU IT WAS DEAD IN JANUARY.  MAYBE MARC



         13   DIDN'T FIND OUT UNTIL JUNE.



         14   Q.  DID MR. ANDREESSEN SAY THAT THE MERITS OF A JAVA BROWSER



         15   INCLUDED, QUOTE, IT'S SLOWER; IT WILL CRASH MORE; AND HAVE



         16   FEWER FEATURES SO YOU CAN DO FEWER THINGS.  IT WILL SIMPLIFY



         17   YOUR LIFE?



         18   A.  AGAIN, I GO BACK TO THE EARLIEST COMMENT I MADE ABOUT



         19   ANDREESSEN AND HIS PUBLIC COMMENTS, DESIGNED TO CREATE A



         20   HUMOROUS RESPONSE AND SOMEWHAT SARCASM.  THE FACT IS, THAT



         21   STATEMENT, TAKEN IN ITS TOTALITY, IS NEITHER TRUE NOR FALSE.



         22   Q.  DID MR. ANDREESSEN ALSO SAY:  THE WORK IS TO MAKE THE



         23   JAVA RUNTIME TABLE STABLE AND FAST; THERE IS AN OPPORTUNITY



         24   TO DO THAT.  RIGHT NOW MICROSOFT IS DOING IT AND THERE YOU



         25   ARE?
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          1   A.  YOU HAVE ADDED A LITTLE BIT OF "THERE YOU ARE" FOR



          2   EFFECT.  I DON'T KNOW THAT MARC SAID IT QUITE THAT WAY.  IF



          3   HE SAID THAT IN PUBLIC, I AM NOT HERE TO DENY IT OR ACCEPT



          4   IT.  I DON'T REMEMBER READING THAT COMMENT.  I DON'T KNOW



          5   ANYTHING ABOUT THAT COMMENT.



          6             MR. WARDEN:  I OFFER DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 53 MARKED



          7   FOR IDENTIFICATION, AN INTERVIEW -- A REPORT OF AN INTERVIEW



          8   WITH MARC ANDREESSEN OF NETSCAPE IN TECHWEB, THE TECHNOLOGY



          9   NEWS SITE DATED JULY 1, 1998 BY WYLIE WONG.



         10             MR. BOIES:  I HAVE NO OBJECTION TO THIS, YOUR



         11   HONOR.



         12             THE COURT:  DEFENDANT'S 53 IS ADMITTED.



         13                                   (WHEREUPON, DEFENDANT'S



         14                                   EXHIBIT NUMBER 53 WAS



         15                                   RECEIVED IN EVIDENCE.)



         16   BY MR. WARDEN:



         17   Q.  ACTUALLY, AT LEAST ACCORDING TO THE REPORTER,



         18   MR. ANDREESSEN SAID "THERE YOU ARE."  I DIDN'T ADD IT.



         19   A.  I KNOW, BUT MARK DOESN'T TALK LIKE YOU DO.



         20   Q.  I THINK THAT'S ABSOLUTELY CLEAR.  YOU AND I CAN AGREE ON



         21   THAT, IF NOTHING ELSE, MR. BARKSDALE.



         22             I HAVE ALREADY READ THE STATEMENTS FROM THE



         23   DOCUMENT, YOUR HONOR.



         24             THE WITNESS:  NOW, IF YOU WOULD LIKE FOR ME TO



         25   EXPLAIN THAT STATEMENT, IT'S NOT WHAT YOU PURPORTED IT TO
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          1   BE.



          2   BY MR. WARDEN:



          3   Q.  I HAVE NO QUESTION AT THE PRESENT TIME, MR. BARKSDALE.



          4   I AM SURE THAT YOUR COUNSEL; THAT IS, THE GOVERNMENT'S



          5   COUNSEL, WILL DEVELOP WHATEVER THEY THINK THEY NEED TO ON



          6   REDIRECT.



          7             DO YOU UNDERSTAND THE WORDS "JAVA RUNTIME" TO MEAN



          8   THE SAME THING AS JAVA VIRTUAL MACHINE?



          9   A.  YES.



         10             THE COURT:  JAVA WHAT?  RUNTIME?



         11             MR. WARDEN:  RUNTIME, YES.  THAT'S THE PHRASE USED



         12   IN THE ARTICLE.



         13   BY MR. WARDEN:



         14   Q.  DO YOU AGREE THAT MICROSOFT HAS MADE THE JAVA RUNTIME



         15   STABLE AND FAST?



         16   A.  THAT MICROSOFT HAS?



         17   Q.  YES.



         18   A.  FOR THEIR MACHINE, THEY HAVE.  SO HAS APPLE FOR THEIR



         19   MACHINE, IBM FOR THEIR MACHINE.  MOST OF THE MACHINE AND



         20   OPERATING SYSTEM MAKERS ARE BETTER AT THAT THAN A COMPANY



         21   LIKE OURS THAT WOULD RUN ON TOP OF THE OPERATING SYSTEM,



         22   YES, SIR.



         23   Q.  IS COMMUNICATOR 5.0 IN DEVELOPMENT NOW?



         24   A.  I BELIEVE WE HAVE ANNOUNCED IT, YES.



         25   Q.  ISN'T IT TRUE THERE WILL BE NO JAVA VIRTUAL MACHINE IN
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          1   COMMUNICATOR 5.0?



          2   A.  THAT'S WHAT MARC'S SAYING HERE, BECAUSE WE'RE DEPENDING



          3   ON THE MANUFACTURERS TO DO IT.  THAT'S A SMARTER WAY TO DO



          4   IT.  THAT'S WHAT MARC IS SAYING THERE.  LET THEM DO WHAT



          5   THEY DO BEST; WE DO WHAT WE DO BEST.



          6   Q.  GOING TO PAGE 46, PARAGRAPH 83, YOU HAVE SOME GENERAL



          7   TESTIMONY THERE WITH RESPECT TO JAVA, AND MY QUESTION TO YOU



          8   SIMPLY IS, PUTTING ASIDE BROWSING SOFTWARE, ARE THERE ANY



          9   LIMITATIONS TO APPLICATIONS WRITTEN IN JAVA?



         10   A.  THERE ARE LIMITATIONS TO APPLICATIONS WRITTEN IN ALMOST



         11   ANY LANGUAGE.



         12   Q.  WELL, AREN'T APPLICATIONS WRITTEN IN JAVA SLOWER THAN



         13   OTHER APPLICATIONS?



         14   A.  NOT NECESSARILY.  NO, SIR.  ON JAVA -- SERVER PRODUCTS



         15   HAVE BECOME THE PREFERRED PROGRAMMING LANGUAGE BY ALMOST



         16   EVERY COLLEGE AND UNIVERSITY TEACHING THIS.  THEY LOVE IT



         17   FOR SERVER-SIDE PROGRAMMING.



         18   Q.  HOW ABOUT P.C. PROGRAMMING?



         19   A.  WELL, YOU SAID PUT ASIDE THE BROWSER.



         20   Q.  I AM PUTTING ASIDE THE BROWSER.  I AM TALKING ABOUT



         21   OTHER APPLICATIONS WRITTEN TO RUN ON P.C.'S.



         22   A.  THERE ARE SOME APPLICATIONS ON A P.C. THAT COULD BEST BE



         23   DONE BY JAVA AND OTHERS YOU WOULD PICK ANOTHER LANGUAGE FOR.



         24   I AM NOT SURE I UNDERSTAND YOUR QUESTION.  CERTAINLY, THERE



         25   ARE SOME LIMITATIONS OF IT.  THERE ARE LIMITATIONS TO C++.
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          1   THERE ARE LIMITATIONS TO ALMOST EVERY PROGRAMMING LANGUAGE.



          2   Q.  DON'T APPLICATIONS WRITTEN IN JAVA USE MORE MEMORY THAN



          3   APPLICATIONS WRITTEN IN C++?



          4   A.  THEY MIGHT.



          5   Q.  AREN'T THEY LESS STABLE?



          6   A.  IN SOME CASES; IN SOME CASES, NOT.



          7   Q.  ARE YOU AWARE THAT COREL ATTEMPTED TO WRITE A VERSION OF



          8   WORDPERFECT IN JAVA?



          9   A.  YES, I AM.



         10   Q.  AND THEY WROTE A COMPLETE VERSION OF THAT APPLICATION IN



         11   JAVA; DID THEY NOT?



         12   A.  I DON'T KNOW THAT THEY COMPLETED IT.  I KNOW THEY



         13   ANNOUNCED THEIR INTENTION TO DO IT.



         14   Q.  DIDN'T THEY FIND THAT IT WAS SO SLOW AND OTHERWISE



         15   DEFICIENT AS NOT TO BE COMMERCIALLY VIABLE?



         16   A.  I DON'T KNOW THAT.



         17   Q.  WELL, THE PRODUCT WAS NEVER BROUGHT TO MARKET, WAS IT?



         18   A.  AGAIN, I SAID I DON'T KNOW.  I DON'T KNOW WHAT THEY DID.



         19   Q.  DO YOU KNOW WHETHER THEY TOOK A WRITE-OFF RELATED TO



         20   THAT?



         21   A.  I DON'T KNOW.  I AM SURE YOU DO.



         22   Q.  ISN'T IT TRUE, MR. BARKSDALE, THAT ANY PROGRAM WRITTEN



         23   IN JAVA CAN RUN ON WINDOWS 98?



         24   A.  I HAVE NO REASON TO DOUBT THAT STATEMENT.  THERE MIGHT



         25   BE SOME THAT COULDN'T, BUT IN GENERAL I THINK THAT WOULD BE
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          1   A TRUE STATEMENT.



          2   Q.  ISN'T IT TRUE THAT MICROSOFT, THROUGH ITS WINDOWS



          3   OPERATING SYSTEM PRODUCTS, HAS DISTRIBUTED MORE JAVA VIRTUAL



          4   MACHINES THAN NETSCAPE OR ANYONE ELSE?



          5   A.  I DON'T KNOW THAT TO BE TRUE, BUT THAT DOESN'T MEAN IT'S



          6   CROSS-PLATFORM ON WINDOWS.  THAT WOULD BE THE ARGUMENT.



          7   Q.  WHAT'S NOT CROSS-PLATFORM ABOUT THE WINDOWS JAVA VIRTUAL



          8   MACHINE?



          9   A.  WELL, BECAUSE THE WHOLE ISSUE RIGHT NOW THAT SUN



         10   MICROSYSTEMS IS, I BELIEVE, TAKING MICROSOFT TO COURT ABOUT



         11   IS THAT THEY HAVE, QUOTE, POLLUTED JAVA IN A WAY THAT MAKES



         12   IT UNIQUELY CAPABLE OF PERFORMING ON WINDOWS.



         13   Q.  CAN'T APPLICATIONS WRITTEN IN, QUOTE, PURE, CLOSE QUOTE,



         14   JAVA AS DEFINED BY SUN RUN ON THE WINDOWS 98 JAVA VIRTUAL



         15   MACHINE?



         16   A.  ON THE ONES DEFINED AS HUNDRED PERCENT PURE JAVA, I



         17   DON'T KNOW IF THEY CAN OR NOT.  I KNOW THAT THEY USED NOT TO



         18   BE ABLE TO.



         19   Q.  DO YOU HAVE ANY REASON FOR SUGGESTING TO THE COURT THAT



         20   THEY CANNOT?



         21   A.  I HAVEN'T CHECKED INTO IT LATELY.



         22   Q.  LET'S GO TO PAGE 70, PARAGRAPH 124.



         23   A.  THAT'S PARAGRAPH 124 ON PAGE 70?



         24   Q.  THAT'S CORRECT.



         25             DO YOU SEE ABOUT 10 OR 12 LINES DOWN IN THAT
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          1   PARAGRAPH A REFERENCE TO TECHNICAL INCOMPATIBILITIES?



          2   A.  YES.



          3   Q.  WHAT OPERATING SYSTEM ARE YOU REFERRING TO THERE, OR IF



          4   IT'S MORE THAN ONE, WHICH OPERATING SYSTEMS?



          5   A.  WELL, LET ME -- LET ME READ THIS SENTENCE FOR ONE



          6   SECOND.  RIGHT.  WHAT WE WERE SAYING THERE -- AND I BELIEVE



          7   I HAVE THEM DISCUSSED BELOW AND IN THE DOCUMENTS IN MY



          8   EXHIBITS -- IT WAS REPORTED TO US THAT THERE WERE CERTAIN



          9   EXAMPLES WHERE OUR CLIENT COULD NOT INTERFACE WITH



         10   MICROSOFT'S INTERNET INFORMATION SERVER ON THE SERVER SIDE



         11   AND OTHER SITUATIONS LIKE THAT, WHICH WOULD HAVE BEEN



         12   RUNNING ON NT, I BELIEVE.



         13   Q.  LET'S GO TO OPERATING SYSTEMS FOR P.C.'S.  ARE THEY



         14   INCLUDED IN WHAT YOU'RE TALKING ABOUT HERE?



         15   A.  I DON'T BELIEVE THAT I HAVE ANY DOCUMENTS OR EVIDENCE TO



         16   THAT EFFECT.  WE WERE TALKING HERE PRIMARILY ABOUT WHERE



         17   CUSTOMERS HAD REPORTED TO US THAT, FOR WHATEVER REASON, OUR



         18   BROWSER COULDN'T GET IN.  IN SOME CASES BECAUSE THEY DIDN'T



         19   USE -- THEY DIDN'T INFORM IT CORRECTLY OF WHAT IT WAS AND IT



         20   CAME BACK AND SAID "BROWSER UNAUTHORIZED," MEANING YOU COULD



         21   ONLY USE IE TO ACCESS CERTAIN SERVER APPLICATIONS OR



         22   PRODUCTS.



         23   Q.  THIS IS ON SERVERS, NOT ON P.C.'S; IS THAT CORRECT?



         24   A.  THAT WAS WHAT I BELIEVE THE ONES I INCLUDED IN MY



         25   EXHIBITS WERE.  THERE MAY HAVE BEEN OTHERS.  WE HAVE HAD
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          1   OCCASIONS WHERE, IN THE PAST, WE WOULD GET REPORTS FROM



          2   CUSTOMERS THAT THEY COULD NOT LOAD OUR PRODUCT ON WINDOWS 95



          3   AND BRING IT UP.  AND THOSE WOULD BE A LIST OF THINGS THAT,



          4   OVER TIME, AS BETAS WERE MOVED INTO PRODUCTION, SEEMED TO



          5   GET FIXED.



          6   Q.  OKAY.  SO YOU'RE TALKING ABOUT BETAS, NOT COMMERCIAL



          7   RELEASES?



          8   A.  YES, BUT WE'RE VERY DEPENDENT ON BETAS.



          9   Q.  AND THEY WERE FIXED WHEN THE COMMERCIAL RELEASES



         10   APPEARED?



         11   A.  IF YOU SAY SO.  I DON'T KNOW THAT ALL OF THEM HAD BEEN



         12   FIXED, BUT I HAVE CERTAINLY GOTTEN REPORTS TO THAT EFFECT.



         13   Q.  PAGE 71, PARAGRAPH 125.  THERE IS SOME REFERENCE TO



         14   COMPUTER MEMORY IN THE LAST SENTENCE.  DO YOU SEE THAT,



         15   RIGHT BEFORE PARAGRAPH 126?



         16   A.  YES.



         17   Q.  HOW MUCH MEMORY DOES COMMUNICATOR 4.0 TAKE UP?



         18   A.  I BELIEVE WHEN IT'S FULLY UNPACKAGED, IT'S SOMEWHERE IN



         19   THE NEIGHBORHOOD OF 16 TO 20 MEGABYTES OR A MILLION -- 16 TO



         20   20 MILLION CHARACTERS.



         21   Q.  AND HOW MUCH MEMORY DOES WINDOWS 98 WEB BROWSING



         22   SOFTWARE TAKE UP?



         23   A.  I THINK IT'S SOMEWHERE IN THE NEIGHBORHOOD OF 80



         24   MEGABYTES.



         25   Q.  AND HOW DID YOU DERIVE THAT CALCULATION?
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          1   A.  I BELIEVE I'VE READ IT SOMEWHERE BECAUSE WINDOWS 98 --



          2   THEY HAVE NEVER PUBLISHED WHAT'S THE BROWSER AND WHAT'S THE



          3   OPERATING SYSTEM, SO PEOPLE TEND TO GET IT ALL, IN EFFECT,



          4   INTEGRATED TOGETHER WHICH MAKES IT A LARGE PRODUCT.  YOU



          5   CAN'T TAKE THE BROWSER OUT OF WINDOWS 98 AS IT'S CURRENTLY



          6   CONSTITUTED.



          7   Q.  OKAY.  WINDOWS 98 AS A WHOLE TAKES UP 80 MEGABYTES; IS



          8   THAT WHAT --



          9   A.  IT MAY TAKE 140.  I HAVE SEEN REPORTS THAT IT TAKES UP A



         10   LOT MORE MEMORY THAN WINDOWS 95.



         11   Q.  GOING TO PAGE 72, PARAGRAPH 128, HOW MANY OF MICROSOFT'S



         12   LICENSES TO ISP'S HAVE YOU REVIEWED?



         13   A.  LICENSES TO ISP'S HAVE I PERSONALLY REVIEWED?



         14   Q.  YES.



         15   A.  NONE.



         16   Q.  NONE.



         17   A.  I DON'T HAVE ACCESS TO THEM.



         18   Q.  ARE THERE ANY ISP'S THAT HAVE LICENSING AGREEMENTS WITH



         19   MICROSOFT THAT YOU DO NOT REGARD AS RESTRICTIVE?



         20   A.  ANY LICENSES THAT I DO NOT REGARD AS RESTRICTIVE?  I



         21   DON'T KNOW.



         22   Q.  PAGE 73, PARAGRAPH 130.  WHAT IS THE BASIS OF THE



         23   UNDERSTANDING STATED IN THE FIRST SENTENCE.



         24   A.  THE BASIS -- EXCUSE ME.  IS THAT A QUESTION?



         25   Q.  YES.  WHAT IS THE BASIS OF THE UNDERSTANDING STATED IN
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          1   THE FIRST SENTENCE WHICH BEGINS "I UNDERSTAND."



          2   A.  THESE ARE JUST VARIOUS AND SUNDRY REPORTS FROM OUR FIELD



          3   FORCES, LEGAL DEPARTMENT AND OTHERS WHO TELL ME THAT THEY



          4   HAVE BEEN TOLD BY CUSTOMERS THAT THEY HAVE AS MUCH AS THAT.



          5   I BELIEVE THE AOL TEAM HAS TOLD ME IT REQUIRED AS MUCH, IF



          6   NOT MORE THAN THAT.  IT WOULD BE THINGS OF THAT NATURE.



          7   Q.  DO YOU KNOW WHETHER MICROSOFT HAS EVER ENFORCED THE



          8   REQUIREMENT THAT AS MUCH AS 75 TO 80 PERCENT OF AN ISP'S



          9   BROWSER DISTRIBUTION BE IE?



         10   A.  I DON'T SEE HOW THAT MATTERS.  I DON'T KNOW.



         11   Q.  YOU DON'T KNOW.  DO YOU KNOW WHETHER THE ISP'S HONORED



         12   THE COMMITMENT THAT'S STATED IN THIS SENTENCE?



         13   A.  IT'S MY UNDERSTANDING THEY DID.



         14   Q.  AND HOW DID YOU DERIVE THAT UNDERSTANDING?



         15   A.  THE SAME WAY AS I GAVE YOU THE PREVIOUS ANSWER, JUST



         16   VARIOUS REPORTS.  THEY FELT IT WAS AN OBLIGATION IN ORDER TO



         17   GET THE FREE PRODUCT AND OTHER MARKETING AND OTHER THINGS



         18   THAT MICROSOFT WAS WILLING TO GIVE THEM FOR THIS IN RETURN



         19   FOR THIS SORT OF AN EXCLUSIONARY CONTRACT.



         20   Q.  WHEN YOU REFER TO "REGARDLESS OF PREFERENCE" AT THE END



         21   OF THAT SENTENCE, IS IT YOUR TESTIMONY THAT A CUSTOMER WHO



         22   REQUESTS NETSCAPE WEB BROWSING SOFTWARE FROM ONE OF THESE



         23   ISP'S CAN'T GET IT?



         24   A.  IT HAS BEEN MY UNDERSTANDING THAT THEY HAVE BEEN -- IN



         25   MANY CASES, SAID THAT THEY CAN'T HONOR THAT REQUEST.  AND I
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          1   KNOW THAT ON THE SENATE JUDICIARY COMMITTEE, MICHAEL DELL



          2   SAID THAT HIS COMPANY HAD BEEN CONTACTED BY, I THINK, A



          3   COUPLE OF DOZEN OF SENATE STAFF PEOPLE WHO ASKED FOR THE



          4   PRODUCT AND THEY SAID, "YOU CAN'T GET THE PRODUCT."  THINGS



          5   OF THAT NATURE.



          6   Q.  IS MICHAEL DELL AN ISP?



          7   A.  NO.



          8   Q.  NOW, IS IT YOUR TESTIMONY THAT A CUSTOMER WHO REQUESTS



          9   NETSCAPE WEB BROWSING SOFTWARE FROM ONE OF THE ISP'S



         10   REFERRED TO IN THIS PARAGRAPH CANNOT GET IT?



         11   A.  FOR INSTANCE, IN AOL, YOU CAN'T GET IT BECAUSE THEY ONLY



         12   HAVE ONE CLIENT AND THAT'S GOT THE INTERNET EXPLORER



         13   INCLUDED IN IT.



         14   Q.  HOW MANY COPIES OF MICROSOFT WEB BROWSING SOFTWARE, AS



         15   YOU DEFINE THAT, HAVE BEEN DISTRIBUTED UNDER THESE



         16   CONTRACTS?



         17   A.  COPIES DISTRIBUTED?  I WOULDN'T KNOW, COUNSELOR.



         18   MILLIONS.



         19   Q.  HOW MANY ARE IN USE TODAY?



         20   A.  TENS OF MILLIONS.



         21             MR. WARDEN:  MAY I HAVE A MOMENT?  I AM SHOWING AN



         22   EXHIBIT TO OPPOSING COUNSEL, YOUR HONOR.



         23             YOUR HONOR, I HAVE HAD MARKED FOR IDENTIFICATION



         24   AS DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 85, A DOCUMENT I WOULD LIKE TO -- I



         25   ONLY HAVE THIS ONE COPY -- EXHIBIT TO THE WITNESS AND COURT
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          1   VIA THE ELMO.



          2             THE COURT:  JUST IDENTIFY IT FOR THE RECORD.



          3             MR. WARDEN:  THIS IS A SCREEN SHOT FROM AOL; THAT



          4   IS, IT'S A PHOTOGRAPH OF WHAT APPEARS ON THE SCREEN OR



          5   PRINTOUT OF WHAT APPEARS ON THE SCREEN.



          6   BY MR. WARDEN:



          7   Q.  HAVE YOU EVER SEEN THIS OR ANYTHING SUBSTANTIALLY LIKE



          8   IT BEFORE, MR. BARKSDALE?



          9   A.  YES, I HAVE.



         10   Q.  WHAT IT IS?



         11   A.  IT'S AN OPPORTUNITY TO GET THE NAVIGATOR, BUT NOT



         12   INCLUDED IN THE AOL CLIENT, WHICH IS WHAT I SAID.  THERE



         13   ISN'T A PRODUCT THAT EXISTS IN THE AOL CLIENT CALLED THE



         14   "NAVIGATOR."  THAT'S THE POINT.



         15   Q.  BUT ANYONE WHO WANTS NETSCAPE NAVIGATOR TO USE IN AOL



         16   CAN GET IT PURSUANT TO THIS OFFER IN WHICH AOL AND NETSCAPE



         17   JOIN TOGETHER TO OFFER YOU NETSCAPE NAVIGATOR FOR FREE.



         18   NETSCAPE NAVIGATOR FOR AOL; ISN'T THAT CORRECT?



         19   A.  WELL, THAT'S WHAT I'VE SAID EARLIER, BUT IT'S NOT PART



         20   OF THEIR EXCLUSIONARY CONTRACT.  THIS IS A TOTALLY SEPARATE



         21   ARRANGEMENT.



         22   Q.  BY WHICH THEIR MEMBERS, IF THEY WISH, CAN USE NETSCAPE



         23   NAVIGATOR WITHIN AOL RATHER THAN USING AOL'S PROPRIETARY



         24   CLIENT BUILT ON MICROSOFT TECHNOLOGY; IS THAT CORRECT, YES



         25   OR NO?
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          1   A.  WOULD YOU RESTATE IT?



          2   Q.  PURSUANT TO THIS OFFER AND PERHAPS OTHERWISE -- BUT I AM



          3   GOING TO LIMIT MYSELF TO THIS -- PURSUANT TO THIS OFFER, A



          4   SUBSCRIBER OR MEMBER OF AOL CAN OBTAIN NETSCAPE NAVIGATOR



          5   AND USE IT IN LIEU OF AOL'S PROPRIETARY CLIENT BUILT ON



          6   MICROSOFT TECHNOLOGY; ISN'T THAT TRUE, YES OR NO?



          7   A.  THAT'S TRUE OF ANY ISP.  THAT PRODUCT PROBABLY IS



          8   PROVIDED FROM NETSCAPE VIA AOL IN THEIR CAPACITY AS AN ISP.



          9   I WAS REFERRING TO THEIR CONTRACT, WHICH IS EXCLUSIONARY FOR



         10   THEIR CLIENT.



         11   Q.  BUT THE EXCLUSIONARY CONTRACT, AS YOU TERM IT, DOESN'T



         12   PREVENT IN ANY WAY THEIR OFFERING NETSCAPE NAVIGATOR FOR



         13   AOL, DOES IT?



         14   A.  I HAVE JUST SAID THAT, BUT THAT'S NOT WHAT I WAS TALKING



         15   ABOUT.



         16   Q.  LET'S GO TO 134 ON PAGE 75.



         17             THE COURT:  ARE YOU OFFERING DEFENDANT'S 85?



         18             MR. WARDEN:  YES, YOUR HONOR.  I AM SORRY.  YES.



         19             MR. BOIES:  YOUR HONOR, COULD WE HAVE A



         20   REPRESENTATION AS TO WHAT HAD TO BE DONE IN ORDER TO GET



         21   THIS SCREEN?



         22             MR. WARDEN:  NOT FROM ME.  MR. LACOVARA WILL MAKE



         23   THAT REPRESENTATION.



         24             MR. LACOVARA:  YOUR HONOR, IF AN AOL SUBSCRIBER



         25   TYPES IN THE KEYWORD, "NETSCAPE," AS YOU CAN SEE IN THE
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          1   LOWER RIGHT-HAND CORNER OF EXHIBIT 85, THIS IS THE SCREEN



          2   SHOT THAT APPEARS.



          3             THE COURT:  ARE YOU SATISFIED, MR. BOIES?



          4             MR. BOIES:  I AM, YOUR HONOR.  THAT WAS WHAT I



          5   WANTED.  NO OBJECTION.



          6             THE COURT:  OKAY.  DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 85 IS



          7   ADMITTED.



          8                                   (WHEREUPON, DEFENDANT'S



          9                                   EXHIBIT NUMBER 85 WAS



         10                                   RECEIVED IN EVIDENCE.)



         11             THE COURT:  IS THIS AN APPROPRIATE TIME TO TAKE



         12   THE MID-MORNING RECESS?



         13             MR. WARDEN:  YES, YOUR HONOR.  THANK YOU.  IT IS.



         14             (A RECESS WAS TAKEN.)



         15             (AFTER RECESS.)



         16   BY MR. WARDEN:



         17   Q.  MR. BARKSDALE, AT PARAGRAPH 134 ON PAGE 75, YOU BEGIN AN



         18   EXTENDED DISCUSSION OF AOL'S CHOICE OF BROWSING TECHNOLOGY



         19   FOR ITS PROPRIETARY CLIENT, IS THAT CORRECT?



         20   A.  YES.  EXCUSE ME, COUNSELOR.



         21   Q.  YES.



         22   A.  YOU WANTED ME TO ASK MY LAWYER AT THE BREAK A QUESTION.



         23   Q.  OH, YES.



         24   A.  ALL RIGHT.  IT WAS ABOUT WHETHER OR NOT SHE HAD ANY



         25   KNOWLEDGE OF THAT GOING ON RE THE C.I.D. AND THE DOCUMENTS
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          1   PRODUCED.



          2             FIRST OF ALL, SHE DID WANT ME TO POINT OUT THAT



          3   SHE IS NOT A CHILD AND THAT SHE HAS CHILDREN OF HER OWN.  IN



          4   FACT, I AM VERY PROUD OF HER.  SHE WAS LISTED AS ONE OF THE



          5   TOP FIFTY WOMEN LAWYER AND MOST INFLUENTIAL WOMEN LAWYERS IN



          6   AMERICA BY THE AMERICAN LAWYER, BUT SHE SAID --



          7   Q.  MR. BARKSDALE, I WANT THE ANSWER TO THE QUESTION.



          8   A.  -- SHE SAYS SHE HAS NO KNOWLEDGE OF THAT.  SHE ALSO



          9   EXPLAINED WHY THAT DOCUMENT WASN'T IN OUR RECORDS PRESENTED



         10   TO YOU.



         11   Q.  AND WHAT'S THE EXPLANATION?



         12   A.  AS I UNDERSTAND IT FROM WHAT SHE TOLD ME, THOSE



         13   DOCUMENTS WERE SPECIFICALLY EXCLUDED, BECAUSE THE GOVERNMENT



         14   ALREADY HAD THEM, AND, THEREFORE, UNDER THE ORDER, WE WERE



         15   NOT ASKED TO INCLUDE THOSE DOCUMENTS.



         16   Q.  THANK YOU.



         17   A.  YES, SIR.



         18   Q.  NOW, WITH RESPECT TO AOL, YOU WANTED TO HAVE A GOOD



         19   RELATIONSHIP WITH THEM, DID YOU NOT?



         20   A.  YES, WE DID.



         21   Q.  AND YOU BELIEVED IT WOULD BE BENEFICIAL TO NETSCAPE TO



         22   BE ABLE TO SAY THAT AOL HAD SELECTED NETSCAPE'S TECHNOLOGY



         23   OVER MICROSOFT'S, DID YOU NOT?



         24   A.  NOT PARTICULARLY, NO.



         25   Q.  OKAY.
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          1   A.  WE WERE JUST TRYING TO GET A DISTRIBUTION DEAL WITH



          2   THEM.



          3   Q.  ISN'T IT TRUE THAT AOL WOULD HAVE PREFERRED TO WORK WITH



          4   NETSCAPE INSTEAD OF MICROSOFT?



          5   A.  AT ONE POINT IN TIME, I THINK THAT WOULD HAVE BEEN TRUE.



          6   Q.  DIDN'T STEVE CASE, IN FACT, TELL YOU PERSONALLY THAT?



          7   A.  HE DID AT ONE POINT IN TIME.



          8   Q.  AND DIDN'T DAVID COLBURN TELL YOU THAT?



          9   A.  DAVID, I BELIEVE, SAID SOMETHING TO THAT EFFECT AT ONE



         10   POINT IN TIME.



         11   Q.  AND WHAT ARE THESE TWO POINTS IN TIME?



         12   A.  PRIOR TO GETTING THE DEAL SHIFTED OVER TO MICROSOFT



         13   BECAUSE OF THE WAY THEY HANDLED IT.  PRIOR TO MR. GATES



         14   TELLING MR. CASE, YOU KNOW, "THIS IS YOUR LUCKY DAY."



         15   Q.  AT WHAT POINT IN TIME, MR. BARKSDALE?



         16   A.  THE SPRING OF '95ISH.  I MEAN EXCUSE ME.  THE FALL OF



         17   '95ISH.



         18   Q.  THE FALL OF 95?  OKAY.



         19   A.  DURING THE PROCESS OF THIS DISCUSSION.



         20   Q.  OKAY.



         21             ISN'T IT TRUE THAT YOU AND STEVE CASE, THE C.E.O.



         22   OF AOL, WERE ON FRIENDLY TERMS AT THAT TIME?



         23   A.  AND STILL ARE.



         24   Q.  DID BOTH OF YOU VIEW MICROSOFT AS A COMPETITOR?



         25   A.  IT'S INTERESTING.  STEVE, I THINK, PRIOR TO NETSCAPE,
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          1   DID BECAUSE OF THE INCLUSION OF MSN AND THE MICROSOFT



          2   PRODUCT.  STEVE WAS ACTUALLY -- HE COMMENTED TO ME DURING



          3   THE PROCESS OF THIS TRANSITION HE WAS HAPPY THAT I WAS NOW



          4   HIS HEATSHIELD SO THAT MICROSOFT WOULDN'T BE SO FOCUSED ON



          5   HIM ANYMORE AND JUST FIRE AT ME.



          6   Q.  AND YOU VIEWED MICROSOFT AS A COMPETITOR?



          7   A.  ANYTHING I HAVE SAID DOESN'T INDICATE THAT -- I DID AT



          8   THAT TIME OF THIS AOL DEAL VIEW THEM AS A COMPETITOR, YES,



          9   SIR, AND STILL DO.



         10   Q.  AND DIDN'T YOU AND MR. CASE BELIEVE IT WAS IN THE



         11   INTEREST OF BOTH OF YOUR COMPANIES TO WORK TOGETHER AGAINST



         12   MICROSOFT?



         13   A.  AT VARIOUS POINTS IN TIME, THAT MIGHT HAVE BEEN TRUE.  I



         14   MEAN THAT WAS TRUE, YES.



         15   Q.  WELL, DIDN'T YOU, IN FACT, LIKEN MICROSOFT TO THE



         16   ENEMY -- PERHAPS EVEN TO A TRULY REPUGNANT ENEMY?



         17   A.  A REPUGNANT ENEMY?  YOU MEAN SCORPION?



         18   Q.  NO, I WAS THINKING MORE OF THE NAZIS.



         19   A.  OH, AT ONE TIME, YES.  WE WERE THE ALLIES, AND THEY WERE



         20   THE AXIS.



         21             MR. WARDEN:  I OFFER WHAT'S BEEN MARKED FOR



         22   IDENTIFICATION AS DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 54, WHICH IS ONE OF



         23   THESE E-MAILS THAT FORWARDS AN E-MAIL.  THE PORTION I AM



         24   INTERESTED IN HAS ALL THE CARETS IN FRONT OF IT AND IS DATED



         25   THURSDAY, 19 OCTOBER, 1995, TO STEVE CASE AT AOL FROM J.
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          1   BARKSDALE AT NETSCAPE.



          2             MR. BOIES:  MAY I INQUIRE, YOUR HONOR, THROUGH THE



          3   COURT WHETHER THIS IS A COMPLETE COPY OF THE DOCUMENT AS



          4   PRODUCED?



          5             MR. WARDEN:  I AM ADVISED THAT THIS IS A COMPLETE



          6   COPY OF THE DOCUMENT AS PRODUCED BY NETSCAPE.  THERE IS A



          7   DIFFERENT VERSION PRODUCED BY AOL THAT MAY HAVE SOMETHING



          8   MORE ADDED TO IT.



          9             MR. BOIES:  I HAVE NO OBJECTION.



         10             THE COURT:  DEFENDANT'S 54 IS ADMITTED.



         11                                   (WHEREUPON, DEFENDANT'S



         12                                   EXHIBIT NUMBER 54 WAS



         13                                   RECEIVED IN EVIDENCE.)



         14             THE WITNESS:  YES, I REMEMBER THIS.



         15   BY MR. WARDEN:



         16   Q.  YOU DO?



         17   A.  I DON'T REMEMBER THE TOP PART AND WHERE IT CAME FROM.



         18   Q.  YOU REMEMBER THE PART BEGINNING "THURSDAY, 19 OCTOBER"?



         19   A.  YES.  I MEAN SOMETHING SIMILAR TO THIS, YES.



         20   Q.  AND YOU ADDRESSED STEVE AS "FRANKLIN D.," IS THAT NOT



         21   CORRECT?



         22   A.  YES, THAT'S WHAT HE WANTED TO BE CALLED.



         23   Q.  DOES THAT REFER --



         24   A.  YOU DON'T WANT TO GO THERE.



         25   Q.  THAT REFERS TO FRANKLIN DELANO ROOSEVELT, DOES IT NOT?
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          1   A.  YES, SIR.  IT CERTAINLY DOES.  HE IS ONE OF MY HEROS.



          2   Q.  AND YOU SIGN YOURSELF, "YOUR COMRADE, JOSEPH STALIN,"



          3   ISN'T THAT CORRECT?



          4   A.  HE WANTED ME TO BE JOSEPH STALIN, BUT I RESENTED THAT



          5   AND SAID I WANTED TO BE WINSTON CHURCHILL, BUT HE WOULD



          6   NEVER LET ME BE WINSTON CHURCHILL.  BUT I DID, YES.



          7   Q.  IN ANY EVENT, YOU, COMRADE STALIN, SAID -- AND I



          8   QUOTE --  THAT YOU ABSOLUTELY AGREE WITH HIS, ANDREESSEN'S,



          9   CONCLUSION THAT IF WE FIGHT THEM -- MICROSOFT -- TOGETHER WE



         10   CAN WIN AND WHAT A VICTORY IT WOULD BE.  THE ENEMY OF MY



         11   ENEMY IS MY FRIEND, IS THAT CORRECT?



         12   A.  THAT'S WHAT IT SAYS.



         13   Q.  AND THOSE STATEMENTS ACCURATELY EXPRESSED YOUR



         14   SENTIMENTS AT THE TIME THIS E-MAIL WAS SENT, DID THEY NOT?



         15   A.  AT THAT TIME IN OCTOBER OF '95, THEY DID.



         16   Q.  DID YOU EVER GET TO BE WINSTON CHURCHILL?



         17   A.  NO, SIR.



         18   Q.  DID YOU TELL STEVE CASE IN JANUARY, 1996, IN SUM OR



         19   SUBSTANCE, THAT NETSCAPE'S CORE BUSINESS WAS ENTERPRISE



         20   SOFTWARE?



         21   A.  I DON'T REMEMBER THAT.  I MAY HAVE, BUT I DON'T REMEMBER



         22   THAT.  IN '96, JANUARY?



         23   Q.  YES.



         24   A.  I MAY HAVE.  THAT WOULD -- THAT WOULDN'T BE SOMETHING I



         25   WOULD DISAGREE WITH EVEN TODAY.
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          1   Q.  DO YOU KNOW WHAT IT MEANS TO BUILD BROWSING SOFTWARE IN



          2   DYNAMICALLY LINKED LIBRARIES OR DLL'S?



          3   A.  I DO, IN GENERAL, SIR.



          4   Q.  IN JANUARY, 1996, DID NETSCAPE BUILD BROWSING SOFTWARE



          5   IN DLL'S?



          6   A.  NO, WE DID NOT.



          7   Q.  YOUR BROWSING SOFTWARE WAS BASICALLY ONE MONOLITHIC



          8   BLOCK OF CODE, IS THAT CORRECT?



          9   A.  IT COULD BE CHARACTERIZED THAT WAY.



         10   Q.  AND HOW MUCH MEMORY DID IT TAKE UP AT THAT TIME,



         11   JANUARY, '96?



         12   A.  WE WOULD HAVE BEEN, I GUESS, AT THE 2.0 VERSION OF OUR



         13   PRODUCT.  IT PROBABLY WOULD HAVE TAKEN FOUR-OR-FIVE MILLION



         14   CHARACTERS.



         15   Q.  THAT'S FOUR-OR-FIVE MEGABYTES?



         16   A.  YES, SIR.



         17   Q.  AND AT THAT TIME, ISN'T IT TRUE THAT YOUR OWN ENGINEERS



         18   HAD BEGUN TO REFER TO YOUR BROWSING SOFTWARE AS "SPAGHETTI



         19   CODE" OR "DEAD CODE"?



         20   A.  WELL, I HAVE HEARD THE TERM AND SEEN IN DOCUMENTS SOME



         21   ENGINEERS REFER TO IT AS "SPAGHETTI."  I HAVE NEVER HEARD IT



         22   CALLED "DEAD."



         23   Q.  DID ANYONE AT NETSCAPE EVER TELL AOL THAT NETSCAPE



         24   VIEWED DEVELOPING A DLL BROWSER AS AN UNNATURAL ACT?



         25   A.  SOMEBODY MAY HAVE FELT THAT WAY.  IT WASN'T ME.
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          1   Q.  NOW, IN PARAGRAPH 134, YOU REFER, TOWARD THE BOTTOM OF



          2   PAGE 75, TO LENGTHY DISCUSSIONS BETWEEN NETSCAPE AND AOL,



          3   ABOUT THE TECHNICAL FEASIBILITY OF EMBEDDING THE NETSCAPE



          4   BROWSER INTO THE AOL SYSTEM.  DO YOU SEE THAT?



          5   A.  YES, SIR.



          6   Q.  WHAT DO YOU MEAN BY "EMBEDDING THE NETSCAPE BROWSER INTO



          7   THE AOL SYSTEM"?



          8   A.  WELL, IN THE WAY THAT IT IS CURRENTLY CONFIGURED TODAY



          9   WITH INTERNET EXPLORER, WHERE THE AOL CLIENT DOES MANY



         10   THINGS, BUT IT ALSO HAS A BROWSER EMBEDDED IN IT, WHERE YOU



         11   GO TO IT AS A UNIT AND YOU BROWSE THE INTERNET INSTEAD OF



         12   USING THE AOL CLIENT FOR THAT FUNCTION.



         13   Q.  WHAT GETS EMBEDDED IN THE CLIENT -- THE AOL CLIENT?  THE



         14   ENTIRE BROWSER OR JUST PIECES OF IT?



         15   A.  WELL, THE WAY IT IS CURRENTLY CONFIGURED, IT WOULD BE



         16   THE DOWNLOADABLE MODULE THAT YOU MENTIONED, AND IT IS LINKED



         17   TO IT IN A WAY THAT THE USER THINKS THEY ARE PART AND PARCEL



         18   OF THE SAME PRODUCT.



         19   Q.  DOESN'T WHAT GETS EMBEDDED DEPEND ON WHETHER THE CODE IS



         20   WRITTEN IN DLL'S OR NOT?



         21   A.  IT DEPENDS ON THE PRODUCT.  AOL HAS ACTUALLY MADE --



         22   EXCUSE ME -- MICROSOFT HAS MADE, AND WE WOULD HAVE MADE FOR



         23   THEM SEPARATE PRODUCTS -- ONE FOR THE WINDOWS 3.1, WHICH WAS



         24   THE MOST PROLIFIC AOL CLIENT AT THAT TIME AND MAY STILL BE



         25   TODAY -- I DON'T KNOW -- BUT CERTAINLY WAS FOR THE NEXT YEAR
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          1   OR SO.  THAT WOULD HAVE BEEN A DIFFERENT RENDITION OF THE



          2   PRODUCT FROM, SAY, THE WINDOWS 95 VERSION OF IT, AND ONE



          3   WOULD BE SIMPLER TO DO THAN THE OTHER.



          4   Q.  DID NETSCAPE HAVE A COMPONENTIZED BROWSER IN THE FALL OF



          5   1995?



          6   A.  I JUST SAID WE DIDN'T.



          7   Q.  OKAY.  WHEN YOU AGREED THAT IT WAS MONOLITHIC?



          8   A.  YES, SIR.



          9   Q.  OKAY.  DIDN'T AOL TELL YOU THAT THEY WANTED BROWSING



         10   TECHNOLOGY THAT WAS DESIGNED IN DLL'S?



         11   A.  THEY SAID THEY WANTED A PRODUCT THAT THEY COULD PUT



         12   WITHIN THEIR CLIENT.  THEY WEREN'T SPECIFIC AS TO WHETHER IT



         13   HAD TO BE A DLL.  THAT WOULD HAVE BEEN ONE OF THE TECHNIQUES



         14   WE OFFERED AND TO THIS DAY HAVE OFFERED TO BUILD THAT FOR



         15   THEM.



         16   Q.  THEY WANTED A COMPONENTIZED OR MODULAR PRODUCT, IS THAT



         17   RIGHT?



         18   A.  THAT WOULD BE ONE WAY OF DOING IT.  YOU COULD STILL DO



         19   IT WITH MONOLITHIC CODE, BUT YOU WOULD HAVE TO MAKE SOME



         20   MODIFICATIONS TO IT TO PUT IT IN THE CONFIGURATION THEY HAVE



         21   GOT IT TODAY.



         22   Q.  AND THAT IS BECAUSE AOL'S ENGINEERS BELIEVED THAT A



         23   DLL-BASED ARCHITECTURE WAS EASIER TO WORK WITH AND WOULD



         24   IMPLEMENT BETTER IN THEIR CLIENT THAN OTHER SOFTWARE?



         25   A.  WHATEVER THEY BELIEVED, WE OFFERED TO DO IT.
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          1   Q.  SO DID YOU ACTUALLY COMMIT TO THEM TO DO IT?



          2   A.  I TOLD MR. CASE IF WE GOT THE BUSINESS, WE WOULD MAKE



          3   THAT COMMITMENT AND MEET HIS DELIVERY SCHEDULE.



          4   Q.  AND WHAT WAS THE DEADLINE BY WHICH YOU WERE GOING TO



          5   MEET THAT?



          6   A.  WELL, APPARENTLY IT WAS OVER A YEAR, BECAUSE MICROSOFT



          7   TOOK ALMOST TO THE SPRING OF 1997 TO ACTUALLY INCLUDE IT FOR



          8   THE WINDOWS 3.1.  AND SO WE WERE SHOOTING FOR SOMEWHERE IN



          9   THAT TIME, YOU KNOW, FROM SIX MONTHS TO A YEAR.



         10   Q.  DID YOU GIVE THEM A DATE CERTAIN BY WHICH YOU WOULD



         11   DELIVER A DLL BROWSER?



         12   A.  I TOLD MR. CASE WE WOULD DO WHAT IT TOOK TO GET HIS



         13   BUSINESS.



         14   Q.  YOU DON'T KNOW IF YOU GAVE THEM A DATE?



         15   A.  I DON'T KNOW THAT I DID.  I KNOW THAT THEY HAD --



         16   BECAUSE OF THEIR CHRISTMAS SCHEDULE AND THE WAY AOL RELEASED



         17   ITS PRODUCTS, THEY WANTED IT ALL BY THE FALL.  MICROSOFT DID



         18   NOT DELIVER ALL BY THE FALL.  IN FACT, THEY ONLY DELIVERED



         19   WINDOWS 95, WHICH WAS A SMALL PART OF IT.



         20   Q.  NOW, MICROSOFT HAD A COMPONENTIZED BROWSER, DID IT NOT?



         21   A.  THEY SAID THEY DID, BUT I DON'T KNOW IF THAT WAS JUST



         22   FOR WINDOWS 95 OR 3.1.  THEY ALSO BUILD A PRODUCT INCLUDED



         23   FOR, I BELIEVE, MACINTOSH AND OTHER PRODUCTS THAT I DON'T



         24   BELIEVE ARE CLASSIFIED AS DLL'S.



         25   Q.  BUT THEY DID HAVE A COMPONENTIZED PRODUCT FOR WINDOWS
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          1   95?



          2   A.  AT THAT PARTICULAR TIME I DON'T BELIEVE THEY DID.  THEY



          3   WERE GOING TO HAVE IT COMPONENTIZED IN IE 3.0, WHICH I DON'T



          4   BELIEVE CAME OUT UNTIL THE NEXT FALL.  SO WHETHER THEY HAD



          5   ONE IN BETA OR SOMETHING, I JUST DON'T KNOW.



          6   Q.  WASN'T IE 3.0 IN BETA BY MARCH, 1996?



          7   A.  I DON'T BELIEVE IT WAS.  IT MAY HAVE BEEN, BUT IT WOULD



          8   HAVE BEEN -- THAT WOULD HAVE BEEN EIGHT-OR-NINE MONTHS PRIOR



          9   TO SHIP.  SO I WOULDN'T THINK IT WOULD HAVE BEEN.



         10   Q.  YOU DIDN'T HAVE ONE IN BETA, OR EVEN IN ALPHA, OR EVEN



         11   ON THE DRAWING BOARDS, DID YOU?



         12   A.  IT'S NOT ROCKET SCIENCE TO DO IT.  WE WERE WILLING TO DO



         13   IT, AND KNEW HOW TO DO IT, AND OFFERED TO DO IT.



         14   Q.  DIDN'T AOL, IN FACT, SAY IF YOU DID IT, THEY WOULD PAY



         15   FOR IT?



         16   A.  THEY OFFERED TO GIVE US SOME FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE.  I



         17   DON'T REMEMBER IF THEY WOULD PAY THE WHOLE TAB.



         18   Q.  YOU SAY IN THE LAST SENTENCE OF 134 ON THE NEXT PAGE,



         19   76, THAT YOU HAD COMMITTED AND TO DOING SO ON A SCHEDULE



         20   THAT MET AOL'S NEEDS.  DO YOU REMEMBER NOW EXACTLY WHAT THE



         21   COMMITMENT WAS AND WHAT THE SCHEDULE WAS?



         22   A.  NO, SIR.  I DON'T REMEMBER.



         23   Q.  WHAT WOULD NETSCAPE HAVE TO DO TO COMPONENTIZE ITS



         24   BROWSER?  I THINK YOU SAID IT WASN'T EXACTLY ROCKET SCIENCE.



         25   A.  WE NOW HAVE A COMPONENTIZED VERSION OF THE PRODUCT, AS I
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          1   MENTIONED A WHILE AGO, THAT WOULD BE SUFFICIENT FOR THEIR



          2   USE.  AND THAT PROBABLY TOOK MAYBE FOUR-OR-FIVE MAN YEARS.



          3   FOUR MAN YEARS MAYBE.



          4   Q.  BACK IN JANUARY TO MARCH, 1996, HOW LONG HAD YOUR



          5   ENGINEERS TOLD YOU IT WOULD TAKE TO BUILD A DLL BROWSER?



          6   A.  I DON'T REMEMBER.  SOME PERIOD OF TIME.



          7   Q.  HOW MUCH DID NETSCAPE INTEND TO CHARGE AOL FOR EACH



          8   BROWSER AOL DISTRIBUTED?



          9   A.  I DON'T REMEMBER EXACTLY.  IT WAS A SMALL AMOUNT PER



         10   BROWSER.  I THINK THE WHOLE CONTRACT WAS



         11   FOUR-OR-FIVE-MILLION DOLLARS.



         12   Q.  THE COMPONENTIZED BROWSER YOU HAVE BEEN REFERRING TO



         13   THAT YOU NOW HAVE -- WHAT IS THAT CALLED?



         14   A.  AS I SAID, THE PRODUCT THAT WOULD SUFFICE FOR AOL, WHICH



         15   YOU WOULDN'T CLASSIFY THE WAY MICROSOFT WOULD CALL A



         16   COMPONENTIZED BROWSER, IS THIS RENDERING ENGINE THAT WE



         17   REFERRED TO EARLIER CALLED RAPTOR.



         18   Q.  OKAY.  WHY WOULDN'T MICROSOFT CALL IT A COMPONENTIZED



         19   BROWSER?



         20   A.  THEY WOULD JUST HAVE BUILT IT A DIFFERENT WAY, I THINK.



         21   Q.  DOES IT HAVE DLL'S?



         22   A.  IT DOES, BUT THAT IS NOT THE ONLY DEFINITION OF



         23   COMPONENTIZATION.  I MEAN YOU'RE NOW GETTING INTO AN AREA



         24   THAT WE CAN HAVE MORE EXPERT TECHNICIANS COME IN AND TESTIFY



         25   ON, BUT BASICALLY WE OFFERED TO DO WHAT IT TOOK TO GET THE
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          1   BUSINESS, WHETHER IT WAS COMPONENTIZED OR PEANUT BUTTER.



          2   Q.  WAS PEANUT BUTTER REQUESTED, TOO?



          3   A.  NO, BUT WE WERE WILLING TO DO WHAT IT TOOK TO MEET THE



          4   TECHNICAL REQUIREMENTS OF THE AOL CONTRACT.



          5   Q.  DID AOL EVER EXPRESS CONCERN TO NETSCAPE THAT NETSCAPE'S



          6   BROWSING SOFTWARE WAS MONOLITHIC?



          7   A.  THEY MAY HAVE.



          8   Q.  DID AOL EVER EXPRESS CONCERN TO NETSCAPE THAT NETSCAPE'S



          9   BROWSING SOFTWARE CONSISTED OF SPAGHETTI CODE?



         10   A.  I DON'T REMEMBER THEM USING THAT PEJORATIVE IN MY



         11   PRESENCE.



         12   Q.  DID AOL EVER EXPRESS CONCERN TO NETSCAPE THAT NETSCAPE'S



         13   BROWSING SOFTWARE CONSUMED TOO MUCH MEMORY?



         14   A.  THEY MAY HAVE.  IT'S FAR SMALLER THAN IE.



         15   Q.  YOU MEAN THAN WINDOWS?



         16   A.  NO, SIR.  THAN IE TODAY.  THERE'S 18 MEGABYTES IN THE



         17   AOL PRODUCT.



         18   Q.  THE AOL CLIENT IS 18 MEGABYTES?



         19   A.  NO, SIR.  IE IS 18 MEGABYTES PART OF THE AOL CLIENT.  IT



         20   IS A HUGE PIECE OF CODE.



         21   Q.  WHEN THE AOL CLIENT IS INSTALLED ON WINDOWS 98, HOW MANY



         22   OF THOSE 18 MEGABYTES HAVE TO BE INSTALLED?



         23   A.  ON WINDOWS 98?



         24   Q.  YES.



         25   A.  I DON'T KNOW, BUT THE VAST MAJORITY OF THEIR CUSTOMERS
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          1   ARE WINDOWS 95 AND WINDOWS 3.1.  THERE ARE VERY FEW



          2   WINDOWS 98.



          3   Q.  ISN'T IT A FACT THAT 95 PERCENT OR MORE OF THE CODE IN



          4   THOSE 18 MEGABYTES IS A PART OF WINDOWS 98 AND, THEREFORE,



          5   WHEN THE AOL CLIENT IS INSTALLED, ONLY A TINY FRACTION OF



          6   WHAT YOU'RE TACKING ABOUT HAS TO BE INSTALLED?



          7   A.  IN A WAY, THAT IS PART OF MY COMPLAINT, BUT IN ANOTHER



          8   WAY, AOL TELLS ME IT IS A BIG PROBLEM FOR THEM MAINTAINING



          9   THAT CLIENT.  BUT YOU CAN ASK THEM.  THEY ARE GOING TO BE



         10   HERE.



         11   Q.  THEY SURE YOU.



         12             DID AOL EVER EXPRESS CONCERN TO NETSCAPE ABOUT



         13   AOL'S ABILITY TO CUSTOMIZE THE CORE FEATURES OF NETSCAPE'S



         14   WEB BROWSING SOFTWARE?



         15   A.  WELL, THEY WANTED CERTAIN FEATURES CUSTOMIZED.  THAT WAS



         16   PART OF THIS SPEC, I THINK WOULD BE FAIR TO SAY.



         17   Q.  DID THEY EXPRESS CONCERN ABOUT THE EXTENSIBILITY OF



         18   NETSCAPE'S BROWSING SOFTWARE?



         19   A.  EXTENSIBILITY IN WHAT WAY?



         20   Q.  JUST THE USE OF THAT TERM, "EXTENSIBILITY."



         21   A.  I AM NOT FAMILIAR WITH THAT TERM IN THIS CONTEXT.



         22   Q.  OKAY.  DID AOL EVER EXPRESS CONCERN ABOUT THE



         23   EMBEDABILITY OF NETSCAPE'S BROWSING SOFTWARE?



         24   A.  THAT'S WHAT WE WERE TALKING ABOUT EARLIER WITH THIS



         25   COMPONENT, AND THE RAMIFICATIONS OF THAT, I THINK, WOULD BE
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          1   AN ISSUE.  BUT WE SAID WE WOULD DO THAT.



          2   Q.  DID AOL EVER EXPRESS CONCERN THAT NETSCAPE DID NOT SEEM



          3   EAGER OR INTERESTED ENOUGH IN REACHING A DEAL WITH AOL?



          4   A.  NOT TO ME, THEY DIDN'T.  I WAS VERY INTERESTED IN IT.



          5   Q.  AND ANYONE THAT CAME TO YOU IN YOUR ORGANIZATION AND



          6   SAYS, "WE HAVE TO TURN IT ON, WE'VE GOT TO DO MORE, WE'VE



          7   GOT TO WORK HARDER TO GET THE AOL DEAL," YOU BACKED THEM UP



          8   WITH WHATEVER MORAL SUPPORT AND RESOURCES THEY REQUIRED; IS



          9   THAT YOUR TESTIMONY?



         10   A.  PRIOR TO THE DEAL, THAT WOULD BE TRUE.  AFTER THE DEAL,



         11   THERE WERE OTHER CONVERSATIONS AS, I THINK, I INDICATE IN MY



         12   TESTIMONY, WHERE I BECAME LESS INCLINED, BECAUSE I KNEW WE



         13   COULDN'T OVERCOME THE PRINCIPAL REASON THEY DID THE DEAL,



         14   WHICH WAS TO GET ON THE WINDOWS DESKTOP.



         15             BUT THAT WAS NOT TRUE PRIOR TO THE ORIGINAL DEAL.



         16   IN FACT, WE SIGNED THE DEAL WITH AOL THE NIGHT BEFORE THEY



         17   SIGNED WITH MICROSOFT.



         18   Q.  DID AOL EVER EXPRESS CONCERN THAT NETSCAPE WAS NOT



         19   WILLING TO COMMIT ENOUGH DEVELOPERS TO THE AOL PROJECT?



         20   A.  AGAIN, I DON'T KNOW THAT.  THEY MAY HAVE.  I DON'T KNOW.



         21   I WAS WILLING TO COMMIT WHAT IT TOOK.



         22   Q.  AND DID AOL EVER EXPRESS CONCERN THAT NETSCAPE HAD NOT



         23   COMMITTED TO ASSIGN ITS BEST AND MOST SEASONED DEVELOPERS TO



         24   THE AOL PROJECT?



         25   A.  I DON'T KNOW THAT.
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          1   Q.  NOW, AOL ENTERED INTO AN AGREEMENT WITH MICROSOFT TO USE



          2   MICROSOFT'S WEB BROWSING TECHNOLOGY AND ITS PROPRIETARY



          3   CLIENT; ISN'T THAT CORRECT?



          4   A.  YES, SIR.



          5   Q.  AND ISN'T IT TRUE THAT THEY TOLD YOU THEY HAD ENTERED



          6   INTO THAT AGREEMENT WITH MICROSOFT BECAUSE MICROSOFT HAD A



          7   COMPONENTIZED BROWSING TECHNOLOGY AND NETSCAPE DID NOT?



          8   A.  THAT WAS ONE OF THE FACTORS.  I SAY THAT IN MY



          9   TESTIMONY.



         10   Q.  ISN'T IT TRUE ALSO THAT MICROSOFT COULD USE -- I AM



         11   SORRY -- THAT AOL COULD USE MICROSOFT'S WEB BROWSING



         12   TECHNOLOGY FOR FREE WHILE YOU WERE GOING TO CHARGE THEM FOR



         13   YOURS?



         14   A.  THAT WASN'T IT.



         15   Q.  AND ISN'T IT TRUE THAT EVEN AFTER AOL SIGNED UP WITH



         16   MICROSOFT, AOL CAME BACK TO NETSCAPE TO TRY TO GET ANOTHER



         17   DEAL WITH NETSCAPE?



         18   A.  SIR, WE'VE DISCUSSED WITH AOL OFF AND ON THIS THING MANY



         19   TIMES.  THEY, I BELIEVE, HAVE BEEN BACK A COUPLE OF TIMES



         20   SINCE THEY SIGNED THE DEAL, YES.



         21   Q.  AND YOU AND RAM SHRIRAM --



         22   A.  HIS NAME IS RAM SHRIRAM.  THEY RHYME.



         23   Q.  WELL, I WILL GET IT RIGHT SOONER OR LATER.  RAM



         24   SHRIRAM --



         25   A.  RIGHT.
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          1   Q.  -- MET WITH STEVE CASE IN THE SPRING OF '96 IN ORDER TO



          2   WIN SOME OF THIS BUSINESS BACK, DIDN'T YOU?



          3   A.  WE MET WITH -- THERE WERE MEETINGS GOING ON.  I DON'T



          4   REMEMBER EXACTLY WHO.  RAM AND I MAY HAVE MET WITH MR. CASE



          5   IN THE SPRING.  I DON'T REMEMBER EXACT DATES, BUT WE MET



          6   WITH HIM AFTER THE DEAL WAS DONE.



          7   Q.  AND WAS MR. SHRIRAM THE PERSON AT NETSCAPE WHO WAS



          8   RESPONSIBLE TO GAIN ADDITIONAL USERS FOR YOUR BROWSING



          9   SOFTWARE?



         10   A.  HE WAS ONE OF THEM.



         11   Q.  WAS HE IN CHARGE?



         12   A.  NO.  THE MAN WHO IS HEAD OF ALL SALES WAS RESPONSIBLE.



         13   MR. SHRIRAM WORKED FOR HIM.



         14   Q.  AND WAS MR. SHRIRAM RESPONSIBLE TO TRY TO WIN BACK THE



         15   AOL BUSINESS THAT HAD BEEN LOST TO MICROSOFT?



         16   A.  IT WOULD HAVE BEEN IN HIS AREA BECAUSE THEY WOULD BE



         17   CONSIDERED A REDISTRIBUTOR AND HE HANDLED THOSE KINDS OF



         18   ACCOUNTS.



         19   Q.  AND THAT'S WHY HE WAS YOUR -- THE PERSON ACCOMPANYING



         20   YOU WHEN YOU SAW STEVE CASE?



         21   A.  THAT'S PROBABLY TRUE, YES.  HE WOULD HAVE BEEN THE MOST



         22   LIKELY PERSON TO HAVE BEEN WITH ME.



         23   Q.  AND ISN'T IT TRUE THAT AOL TOLD YOU, AGAIN, THAT IF



         24   NETSCAPE BUILT A DLL BROWSER, AOL COULD DELIVER THAT



         25   BROWSING SOFTWARE TO 5 MILLION AOL CUSTOMERS?
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          1   A.  NO, SIR.  THAT IS NOT TRUE.



          2   Q.  OKAY.  ISN'T IT TRUE THAT AOL WAS BENDING OVER BACKWARDS



          3   TO TRY TO DO A DEAL WITH NETSCAPE?



          4   A.  I DON'T REMEMBER THEM BENDING OVER BACKWARDS, NO.  THEY



          5   WERE LOOKING PERHAPS FOR A SECOND VENDOR, BUT I DON'T -- I



          6   NEVER GOT THE IMPRESSION FROM AOL THAT WE WERE, ONE, GOING



          7   TO GET THE BUSINESS EVEN IF WE DID IT; AND THAT, TWO, IT WAS



          8   TO DO US SOME KIND OF FAVOR; AND THAT, THREE, THEY COULD



          9   OVERCOME THE CONTRACTUAL PROBLEMS THEY HAD WITH MICROSOFT;



         10   AND, FOUR, THAT THEY WERE WILLING TO GET RID OF THE ENORMOUS



         11   BENEFIT THEY GOT FROM DISTRIBUTING AOL'S PRODUCTS ON THE



         12   WINDOWS DESKTOP, WHICH AMOUNTED TO PERHAPS HUNDREDS OF



         13   MILLIONS OF DOLLARS A YEAR.  I COULDN'T COMPETE WITH THAT.



         14   SO I DON'T AGREE WITH YOUR PREMISE.



         15   Q.  NOW, THEIR DEAL WITH MICROSOFT DIDN'T GIVE THEM AN ICON



         16   ON THE DESKTOP, DID IT?



         17   A.  SAY AGAIN.



         18   Q.  THEIR DEAL WITH MICROSOFT DID NOT GIVE THEM AN ICON ON



         19   THE DESKTOP, DID IT?



         20   A.  I BELIEVE THEY ARE WITHIN AN ICON ON THE DESKTOP.



         21   THAT'S THE INTERNET -- EXCUSE ME.  THAT'S WITHIN THE NETWORK



         22   PROVIDERS OR WHATEVER FOLDER ON THE WINDOWS DESKTOP.



         23   Q.  AND THEY WERE ALREADY ON THE WINDOWS DESKTOP THROUGH



         24   THEIR DEALS WITH OEM'S; ISN'T THAT CORRECT?



         25   A.  SOME OF THEM.  YOU SAID THAT THE OTHER DAY.
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          1   Q.  ABOUT THE TOP 20 OEM'S ACCOUNTING FOR 90 PERCENT OF



          2   P.C'S. SOLD FOR HOME USAGE?



          3   A.  ALL I CAN TELL YOU IS THAT AOL TOLD ME THAT WAS WORTH A



          4   LOT OF MONEY TO THEM.  AND THEY'VE REPEATED THAT NOW OVER



          5   THE COURSE OF THE LAST THREE YEARS.



          6   Q.  AND WHEN YOU'RE IN BUSINESS NEGOTIATIONS -- YOU HAVE



          7   DONE A LOT OF THEM, HAVEN'T YOU -- BUSINESS NEGOTIATIONS



          8   OVER YOUR CAREER?



          9   A.  I HAVE DONE SOME.



         10   Q.  ISN'T IT COMMON FOR PEOPLE TO TELL YOU, BOY, THE OTHER



         11   GUY IS REALLY OFFERING ME SOMETHING GREAT HERE; IT'S WORTH



         12   ALL THIS MONEY.  IF YOU'RE GOING TO OVERCOME THAT, YOU'D



         13   BETTER COME UP WITH SOMETHING GOOD.  I KNOW YOU DON'T HAVE



         14   THAT, BUT YOU HAD BETTER FIND SOMETHING JUST AS GOOD.



         15             ISN'T THAT COMMON?



         16   A.  THAT'S WHY I WAS DUMFOUNDED WHEN THEY SIGNED WITH



         17   MICROSOFT WITHIN 12 HOURS OF SIGNING WITH ME, BECAUSE THEY



         18   DIDN'T MENTION THAT.



         19   Q.  SO YOU THOUGHT AOL TREATED YOU IMPROPERLY IN THAT



         20   SITUATION; IS THAT CORRECT?



         21   A.  I DID, AND I'VE SAID THAT.



         22   Q.  DID MR. SHRIRAM ADVOCATE NETSCAPE'S BUILDING A



         23   COMPONENTIZED BROWSER, BOTH BEFORE AND AFTER THE MICROSOFT



         24   DEAL WAS SIGNED?



         25   A.  I BELIEVE HE DID, YES.
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          1   Q.  AND ISN'T IT TRUE THAT HIS ADVOCACY OF THAT POSITION DID



          2   NOT MEET WITH A GREAT DEAL OF ENTHUSIASM BY NETSCAPE'S



          3   ENGINEERS?



          4   A.  IT DIDN'T MEET WITH A GREAT DEAL OF ENTHUSIASM BY ME.



          5   Q.  AND THAT'S BECAUSE YOU AND THE ENGINEERS WERE



          6   CONCENTRATING ON ENTERPRISE SOFTWARE, IS IT NOT?



          7   A.  NO, SIR.  ENTERPRISE SOFTWARE INCLUDES CLIENTS BY THE



          8   MILLIONS.  IT'S NOT EXCLUSIVE OF CLIENTS.  THIS WOULD HAVE



          9   BEEN A NEAT PIECE OF THE CLIENT.  IF I THOUGHT WE COULD HAVE



         10   GOTTEN THAT BUSINESS, WE WOULD HAVE GONE RIGHT BACK AFTER



         11   IT.



         12   Q.  DOES ENTERPRISE SOFTWARE INCLUDE AOL'S PROPRIETARY



         13   CLIENT?



         14   A.  IT WOULD BE AN ADJUNCT, YES SIR.



         15   Q.  IT WOULD BE?



         16   A.  BECAUSE IT WOULD INCREASE YOUR MARKET SHARE AND INCREASE



         17   THE PERCEPTION OF THE BUSINESS VIA THAT WERE A MORE VIABLE



         18   COMPANY, BECAUSE IT NOW HAS 13 MILLION IE'S EMBEDDED IN IT



         19   THAT I DON'T GET TO COUNT IN MY MARKET SHARE.



         20   Q.  AND THAT'S AOL'S MARKET SHARE THAT GETS COUNTED UNDER



         21   MICROSOFT; IS THAT RIGHT?



         22   A.  IN SOME STUDIES, IT DOES; IN OTHERS, IT'S BROKEN OUT AS



         23   A SEPARATE IE, BUT IT'S COUNTED GENERALLY AS PART OF THEIR



         24   MARKET SHARE.



         25   Q.  AND THAT'S WHY YOU WANTED THIS DEAL WITH AOL?  IT WAS TO
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          1   GET MARKET SHARE?



          2   A.  THAT WOULD BE A BIG REASON.



          3   Q.  DID YOU EVER COMMIT TO BUILD THE DLL BROWSER FOR AOL?



          4   A.  YES, SIR.



          5   Q.  WHEN?



          6   A.  LIKE I SAID, THIS PAST YEAR.  WE BUILT IT.



          7   Q.  YOU HAVE BUILT IT?



          8   A.  YES, SIR.



          9   Q.  WHEN DID YOU COMMIT TO DO THAT, IF YOU COMMITTED?



         10   A.  I DON'T KNOW EXACTLY THE MONTH, SIR, BUT WE WERE -- AS



         11   IT WAS PART OF THE RAPTOR THING, WE BEGAN DEMONSTRATING AND



         12   PARTICIPATING.  NOW, LET ME ALSO SAY THAT SOME OF THIS IS --



         13   YOU'RE GETTING TO CURRENT ONGOING NEGOTIATIONS THAT I DON'T



         14   KNOW IF I'M SUPPOSED TO TALK ABOUT THAT HERE, BUT I WILL TRY



         15   TO ANSWER YOUR QUESTION.



         16   Q.  MR. BARKSDALE, I AM NOT ASKING ANYTHING ABOUT RIGHT NOW,



         17   OKAY?



         18   A.  WELL, THEN IT WAS A FEW MONTHS AGO.  IT WAS SINCE THE



         19   FIRST OF THE YEAR.  IT SEEMS LIKE MARCH, APRIL, OR SOMEWHERE



         20   IN THERE, OF THIS YEAR, '98.



         21             MR. WARDEN:  YOUR HONOR, I AM GOING TO OFFER AT



         22   THIS TIME DEFENDANTS' EXHIBITS 55 AND 56, BOTH PRODUCED BY



         23   NETSCAPE.  AND THE FIRST ONE, 55, IS TO BOB AT NETSCAPE FROM



         24   RAM SHRIRAM, AND IS DATED JULY 19, 1996.



         25             THE SECOND IS SUBJECT, RE: ART, DATED



�

                                                                              70



          1   WEDNESDAY, 22 MAY, 1996, FROM BOB -- NOW, I HAVE FORGOTTEN



          2   THIS ONE, TOO.  IS IT LISBONNE?



          3             THE WITNESS:  I PRESUME -- YES, IT IS.  THAT WOULD



          4   BE BOB LISBONNE.  BECAUSE ON THE SECOND ONE, THAT'S BOB



          5   LISBONNE.



          6             MR. WARDEN:  ALL RIGHT.  TO RAM SHRIRAM.



          7             THE WITNESS:  RIGHT.



          8             MR. WARDEN:  AND IN THE INTEREST OF TIME, I WOULD



          9   DIRECT THE COURT'S ATTENTION AT A LATER TIME TO APPROPRIATE



         10   PARTS OF THIS DOCUMENT, AND I WON'T QUESTION THE WITNESS --



         11             MR. BOIES:  NO OBJECTION.



         12             MR. WARDEN:  -- WITH THESE DOCUMENTS.



         13             THE COURT:  DEFENDANTS' 55 AND 56 ARE ADMITTED.



         14



         15                                   (WHEREUPON, DEFENDANTS'



         16                                   EXHIBIT NUMBERS 55 AND 56



         17                                   WERE RECEIVED IN EVIDENCE.)



         18   BY MR. WARDEN:



         19   Q.  I THINK WE HAVE TOUCHED ON THIS BEFORE, BUT JUST FOR



         20   CONTINUITY, DID NETSCAPE'S WEB BROWSING SOFTWARE SUPPORT



         21   ACTIVEX IN 1996?



         22   A.  NO, IT DID NOT.



         23   Q.  NOW, IN 1996, HOW MANY ISV'S OR DEVELOPERS WERE



         24   IMPLEMENTING ACTIVEX?



         25   A.  FOR WHAT PURPOSE?
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          1   Q.  FOR THE PROGRAMS THEY WERE WRITING.



          2   A.  WELL, ISV'S WRITE A LOT OF PROGRAMS THAT HAVE NOTHING TO



          3   DO WITH THE INTERNET, SO I'D HAVE NO WAY OF KNOWING.  AND



          4   ACTIVEX IS NOT JUST RELATED TO INTERNET PRODUCTS.  I HAVE NO



          5   IDEA.  PROBABLY A LOT.



          6   Q.  IN THE THOUSANDS?



          7   A.  YES, BUT NOT FOR WEB BROWSING.  NOT FOR WEB



          8   APPLICATIONS.



          9   Q.  HOW MANY FOR BROWSING APPLICATIONS?



         10   A.  NOT THAT MANY.  JAVASCRIPT WAS -- AT ONE TIME IN THAT



         11   POINT OF TIME, PROBABLY OUT OF A MILLION WEB SITE BUILDING



         12   BY ISV'S, 800,000 USED JAVASCRIPT, AND I THINK PROBABLY LESS



         13   THAN A THOUSAND USED ACTIVEX BECAUSE IT WAS PROPRIETARY.



         14   Q.  AND DID YOU HAVE YOUR OWN TECHNOLOGY CALLED "PLUG-INS"?



         15   A.  WE HAVE PLUG-INS AS DO OTHER PEOPLE WHO BUILD THESE



         16   KINDS OF PRODUCTS.  THAT'S AN INDUSTRY TERM, NOT A NETSCAPE



         17   TERM.



         18   Q.  AND DID YOU CHOOSE NOT TO USE ACTIVEX BECAUSE IT WAS A



         19   MICROSOFT-DEVELOPED TECHNOLOGY?



         20   A.  NO, SIR.  WE USED A LOT OF MICROSOFT TECHNOLOGIES.  WE



         21   CHOSE TO NOT USE IT BECAUSE IT WAS NOT CROSS-PLATFORM.  IT



         22   WOULDN'T RUN OR UNIX MACHINES; IT WOULDN'T RUN ON APPLE



         23   MACINTOSH MACHINES.  SO OUR CUSTOMERS WERE LESS INCLINED TO



         24   HAVE IT DEPLOYED THAT WAY.



         25   Q.  GOING TO PARAGRAPH 135, THE SAME PAGE, 76 --
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          1   A.  YES.



          2   Q.  -- YOU REFER IN THE FIRST SENTENCE TO AOL'S ALLEGED



          3   DESIRE TO OFFER BROWSER CHOICE.  DO YOU SEE THAT?



          4   A.  YES.



          5   Q.  WASN'T AOL LOOKING TO BUILD A PROPRIETARY OR BRANDED



          6   CLIENT USING EITHER NETSCAPE OR MICROSOFT TECHNOLOGY AT THIS



          7   TIME?



          8   A.  WELL, I THINK -- THIS IS IN MARCH OF '96.  I AM SORRY.



          9   ARE YOU TALKING ABOUT IN THE FIRST SENTENCE:  TOWARD THE END



         10   OF 1995, THEY TOLD US THEY WERE NEGOTIATING WITH BOTH



         11   COMPANIES BECAUSE IT WAS THEIR DESIRE TO OFFER BROWSER



         12   CHOICE?



         13   Q.  YES.



         14   A.  THEIR DESIRE WAS TO NEGOTIATE WITH BOTH COMPANIES TO



         15   GIVE THEIR USERS CHOICE, I PRESUME, AND TO GIVE THEM BETTER



         16   NEGOTIATING CAPABILITY WITH EITHER US OR MICROSOFT.



         17   Q.  WELL, NEGOTIATING WITH BOTH OF YOU AND THEN CHOOSING ONE



         18   DOESN'T INVOLVE, AT THE END OF THE DAY, QUOTE, BROWSER



         19   CHOICE, CLOSE QUOTE, FOR THE AOL SUBSCRIBER, DOES IT?



         20   A.  THEY ACTUALLY DID CHOOSE BOTH.  THEY SIGNED WITH BOTH OF



         21   US.



         22   Q.  THEY BUILT THEIR PROPRIETARY CLIENT WITH MICROSOFT



         23   TECHNOLOGY; IS THAT CORRECT.



         24   A.  RIGHT.  AND THEY USED US, AS WAS SHOWN ON THAT SCREEN



         25   YOU SHOWED, WHERE YOU HAVE TO GO BACK TO NETSCAPE TO GET OUR
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          1   BROWSER, JUST LIKE ANY OTHER ISP.



          2   Q.  WHY IN THE WORLD WOULD IT BE IN AOL'S INTEREST TO HAVE



          3   MORE THAN ONE PROPRIETARY CLIENT OR BROWSER PRODUCT FOR ITS



          4   USERS?



          5   A.  I DON'T KNOW THAT IT WOULD BE IN THEIR INTEREST.



          6   Q.  IN PARAGRAPH 136, THE TERM "EXCLUSIONARY" IS BOLDFACED



          7   IN THE SECOND LINE.  DO YOU SEE THAT?



          8   A.  YES.



          9   Q.  WHAT IS THE BASIS FOR YOUR KNOWLEDGE AS TO WHY MICROSOFT



         10   WAS ABLE TO EXTRACT EXCLUSIONARY TERMS FROM AOL?



         11   A.  MY CONVERSATIONS WITH MR. CASE THE DAY THEY INFORMED ME



         12   THAT THEY HAD SIGNED MICROSOFT PROPOSAL, AND SUBSEQUENT



         13   CONVERSATIONS WITH HIM AND OTHER PEOPLE IN HIS ORGANIZATION,



         14   MR. COLBURN, MR. GILBURNE, AND MR. PITTMAN, THEIR PRESIDENT.



         15   Q.  WERE ANY OF THESE FACE-TO-FACE CONVERSATIONS?



         16   A.  EVERY ONE OF THEM.



         17   Q.  EVERY ONE OF THEM?



         18   A.  YES, SIR.



         19   Q.  ALL THOSE PEOPLE.  AND THIS WAS FOLLOWING THE TIME THEY



         20   SIGNED UP WITH MICROSOFT?



         21   A.  WELL, SOME WAS IMMEDIATE.  LIKE MR. CASE CALLED ME WHILE



         22   HE WAS FLYING ACROSS THE COUNTRY TO GO SPEAK AT THE



         23   MICROSOFT ANNOUNCEMENT.  BUT SUBSEQUENT TO THAT, THEY'VE



         24   BEEN OVER THE LAST THREE YEARS, OR TWO YEARS, HOWEVER LONG



         25   THIS PERIOD HAS BEEN.
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          1   Q.  AND, DURING THAT ENTIRE TIME, YOU HAVE BEEN SEEKING TO



          2   NEGOTIATE AGREEMENTS WITH AOL, EITHER ABOUT BROWSING



          3   SOFTWARE OR OTHER ADVANTAGEOUS COMMERCIAL SITUATIONS; ISN'T



          4   THAT RIGHT?



          5   A.  NOT INCLUDING THE PRESENT MOMENT.  WE HAVE HAD ONE OTHER



          6   SERIOUS DISCUSSION WITH THEM ALONG THE LINES OF THEIR



          7   INSTANT MESSENGER, WHICH IS CALLED AOL INSTANT MESSENGER OR



          8   AIM.  WE DID SUCCESSFULLY CONCLUDE AN AGREEMENT WITH THEM



          9   LAST DECEMBER-ISH TIMEFRAME IN '97.



         10             BUT IT WAS NOT TRUE THAT OVER THE PERIOD OF TIME,



         11   WE HAD SERIOUS ONGOING NEGOTIATIONS ALL DURING THAT TIME.



         12   IT CAME AND WENT AS AOL HAD INTEREST IN DOING THINGS WITH



         13   US.



         14   Q.  OKAY.



         15   A.  IT WAS ALMOST WHEN THEY CAME TO US, AFTER A FASHION.



         16   Q.  ALL RIGHT.  DURING THE COURSE OF YOUR DISCUSSIONS OR



         17   NEGOTIATIONS WITH AOL BEFORE THEY SIGNED WITH MICROSOFT --



         18   A.  YES.



         19   Q.  -- DID THEY TELL YOU THAT AOL ALREADY HAD AGREEMENTS



         20   WITH THE MAJOR OEM'S TO BE ON THE DESKTOP -- DIRECTLY ON THE



         21   DESKTOP WITH THEIR OWN ICON?



         22   A.  I DON'T RECOLLECT THEM TELLING ME THAT.  I WAS AWARE



         23   THAT THEY CAME ON -- A LOT OF P.C.'S, YOU WOULD HAVE THE AOL



         24   TRIANGLE ON THERE.



         25   Q.  OKAY.  NOW, THE AOL CONTRACT --
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          1   A.  THAT WAS A PROPRIETARY NETWORK AT THAT TIME, NOT AN



          2   INTERNET-ENABLED NETWORK.  BUT THEY DIDN'T -- I DON'T



          3   REMEMBER THEM TELLING ME THAT; I WAS AWARE OF THAT.



          4   Q.  YOU SAY ON PAGE 77 IN PARAGRAPH 137, THE LAST CLAUSE,



          5   YOU WERE EFFECTIVELY SHUT OUT OF THE AOL OPPORTUNITY, AT



          6   LEAST UNTIL THE MICROSOFT CONTRACT EXPIRED.



          7             DO YOU SEE THAT?



          8   A.  YES, I DO.



          9   Q.  AND ISN'T IT A FACT THAT INSOFAR AS PREFERENCING



         10   MICROSOFT'S BROWSING TECHNOLOGY, AOL CAN CANCEL THAT



         11   CONTRACT AS OF JANUARY 1, 1999?



         12   A.  I DON'T KNOW --



         13   Q.  YES OR NO, IF YOU KNOW?



         14   A.  WHAT I KNOW IS I HAVE BEEN TOLD DIFFERENT ANSWERS TO



         15   THAT QUESTION BY AOL EXECUTIVES, BUT I HAVEN'T SEEN THE



         16   CONTRACT.  I KNOW I HAVE BEEN GIVEN DIFFERENT DATES BECAUSE



         17   I HAVE ASKED ABOUT THAT DATE.



         18   Q.  WHAT OTHER DATES HAVE YOU BEEN GIVEN?



         19   A.  I BELIEVE I HAVE BEEN GIVEN A DATE AS LONG AS TWO YEARS



         20   FROM LAST AUGUST WHICH WOULD PUT YOU TO 2001, DEPENDING ON



         21   CERTAIN OTHER THINGS, BUT I DON'T -- I HAVEN'T SEEN THE



         22   CONTRACT.



         23   Q.  IF I WERE TO SUGGEST THAT THIS IS SO, THAT THEY CAN GET



         24   OUT OF THE BROWSING TECHNOLOGY PREFERENCE PROVISIONS AS OF



         25   JANUARY 1, 1999, DO YOU HAVE ANY REASON TO DISAGREE?
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          1   A.  I JUST TOLD YOU.  PEOPLE HAVE TOLD ME THAT IT WAS



          2   LONGER.  SO, YES, I WOULD HAVE REASON TO DISAGREE.



          3   Q.  OKAY.  OKAY.  WHO TOLD YOU THE JANUARY 1 DATE?



          4   A.  OF '99?



          5   Q.  YES.



          6   A.  IT SEEMED TO ME THAT WOULD HAVE BEEN MR. COLBURN OR



          7   MR. MILES GILBURNE LAST SPRING-ISH.



          8   Q.  OKAY.  LET'S GO TO PAGE 85, PARAGRAPH 106 -- I MEAN 160.



          9   A.  RIGHT.



         10   Q.  YOU SAY HERE THAT OEM'S WERE ANXIOUS TO ENTER INTO



         11   AGREEMENTS WITH NETSCAPE.  WHICH OEM'S?



         12   A.  WELL, I HAVE LISTED HERE SEVERAL THAT WE HAD IN 19 --



         13   STARTING IN '94 WITH DIGITAL EQUIPMENT, ALL THE WAY UP



         14   THROUGH '95 INCLUDING ACER, APPLE, AST, COMPAQ, FUJITSU,



         15   HEWLETT-PACKARD, IBM, NEC, SIEMENS, AND ZENITH, HITACHI AND



         16   SONY, TO NAME SOME.



         17   Q.  OKAY.  WHEN DID THEY EXPRESS THIS ANXIOUSNESS?



         18   A.  WELL, BEGINNING WHEN WE MADE THE COMMERCIAL PRODUCT



         19   AVAILABLE AND WHEN MR. SHRIRAM AND HIS PEOPLE BEGAN SELLING



         20   TO -- ACTIVELY SELLING TO OEM'S, WHICH WAS IN, YOU KNOW, THE



         21   DECEMBER-JANUARY PERIOD OF '94-'95.  JANUARY OF '95 AND THEN



         22   GOING FORWARD, WHEN THE PRODUCT WAS MADE AVAILABLE.



         23             OUR FIRST ONE, DIGITAL EQUIPMENT, WAS IN LIKE



         24   OCTOBER OR NOVEMBER OF '94.



         25   Q.  GOING ON TO PAGE 86, THE SAME PARAGRAPH, YOU SAY THEY
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          1   DIDN'T HAVE ANY DIFFICULTY INSTALLING NETSCAPE PRODUCTS ON



          2   TOP OF WINDOWS.



          3   A.  THAT'S CORRECT.



          4   Q.  OKAY.  AND --



          5   A.  I APOLOGIZE, BUT COULD YOU POINT OUT WHERE YOU'RE



          6   READING THAT FROM?



          7   Q.  THE THIRD AND FOURTH --



          8   A.  OH, THAT'S ABOVE THAT PARAGRAPH.  YES, I AM SORRY.  I



          9   GOT AHEAD OF YOU.  YES, I SEE THAT.



         10   Q.  AND THAT'S BECAUSE YOU WERE ABLE TO MAKE YOUR WEB



         11   BROWSING SOFTWARE PERFECTLY INTEROPERABLE WITH WINDOWS;



         12   ISN'T THAT SO?



         13   A.  WINDOWS 3.1 AT THAT TIME, YES.



         14   Q.  OKAY.



         15   A.  "PERFECTLY" MIGHT BE AN EXAGGERATION, BUT IT



         16   INTEROPERATED VERY WELL.  NONE OF THEM ARE PERFECT.



         17   Q.  ACCEPTED.  GOING TO PAGE 87, PARAGRAPH 165 --



         18   A.  CORRECT.



         19   Q.  -- LOOKING AT THE THIRD TO FIFTH LINES, CERTAIN OEM'S



         20   LEARNED THAT THEY COULD GET -- WOULD LOSS VALUABLE MARKETING



         21   DOLLARS.  DO YOU SEE THAT DISCUSSION?



         22   A.  PARAGRAPH 165?



         23   Q.  YES.



         24   A.  ON PAGE 87?



         25   Q.  YES.
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          1   A.  YES.  TRIED TO PUT ON THEIR MACHINES AND THEY LEARNED



          2   THEY WOULD LOSE MARKETING DOLLARS, RIGHT.



          3   Q.  WHICH OEM'S ARE YOU REFERRING TO THERE?



          4   A.  WELL, I BELIEVE THAT I INDICATED THAT IN MY EXHIBITS IN



          5   MORE DETAIL, BUT SOME WOULD BE LIKE, FOR INSTANCE, NCR



          6   INFORMED OUR PEOPLE OF THAT.  AND THEY INFORMED ME THAT THEY



          7   WERE GOING TO BE PENALIZED IF THEY DIDN'T.



          8             JAPAN INFORMED ME THAT SEVERAL OF THE JAPANESE



          9   OEM'S HAD INDICATED THAT THE PRICE OF WINDOWS WOULD GO UP IF



         10   THEY DIDN'T INCLUDE THE INTERNET EXPLORER.  WE HAD VARIOUS



         11   REPORTS OF THAT NATURE AT THE TIME.



         12             APPLE, AS I INDICATED -- THEY WEREN'T GOING TO GET



         13   THE HELP TO BUILD THESE OTHER APPLICATIONS IF THEY DIDN'T



         14   PUT IE ON THERE.  COMPANIES LIKE THAT.



         15   Q.  GOING TO PAGE 89, PARAGRAPH 166 -- IT'S ON BOTH 88 AND



         16   89 -- COMPAQ.



         17   A.  YES, SIR.



         18   Q.  DID NETSCAPE HAVE A CONTRACT WITH COMPAQ TO DISTRIBUTE



         19   NAVIGATOR ON THE PRESARIO LINE OF COMPUTERS?



         20   A.  I BELIEVE WE DID, YES.



         21   Q.  WHO FROM COMPAQ ENTERED INTO THAT CONTRACT ON COMPAQ'S



         22   BEHALF?



         23   A.  I REMEMBER OUR PRINCIPAL SPONSOR WAS RONNY -- I BELIEVE



         24   HIS NAME IS RONNY WARD, BUT I DON'T KNOW IF HE'S



         25   SPECIFICALLY THE ONE WHO SIGNED THE CONTRACT.  HE SPOKE AT
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          1   ONE OF OUR CONFERENCES OR AT A CONFERENCE ON OUR BEHALF, AND



          2   WAS ONE OF OUR PRINCIPAL SUPPORTERS, BUT I COULDN'T SAY.



          3   Q.  BUT YOU DON'T KNOW WHO ON COMPAQ'S SIDE ACTUALLY



          4   NEGOTIATED AND SIGNED THE CONTRACT?



          5   A.  CORRECT.



          6   Q.  WHEN IN 1995 DID THE PRESARIO PRODUCT SHIP?



          7   A.  I DON'T KNOW.



          8   Q.  WAS NAVIGATOR ON THE PRESARIO MACHINE, EVEN IF THE ICON



          9   WASN'T ON THE DESKTOP?



         10   A.  IT MAY HAVE BEEN WHEN IT FIRST WENT OUT THE DOOR.  I



         11   DON'T KNOW.  THEY HAD PUT IT ON ONE OF THE BILLS, I KNOW,



         12   AND THEN PULLED IT.  SO MAYBE THE FIRST BILL OR WHAT'S



         13   CALLED, YOU KNOW, A PRODUCTION DISK MAY HAVE GONE OUT THE



         14   DOOR FOR THE CHRISTMAS SEASON WITH THIS ON THERE, BUT



         15   WITHOUT THE ICON.



         16   Q.  DID ANY COMPAQ-MANUFACTURED MACHINE SHIP WITH A



         17   NAVIGATOR ICON ON THE DESKTOP?



         18   A.  AS I HAVE SAID IN MY TESTIMONY, THEY DEMONSTRATED THE



         19   PRODUCT TO US WITH THE ICON -- WE WERE VERY EXCITED ABOUT



         20   IT -- AND LATER PULLED IT.  SO I DON'T KNOW THAT ANY ENDED



         21   UP SHIPPING WITH THE ICON ON THE DESKTOP.



         22   Q.  GOING TO PAGE 89, YOU SAY IN THE SECOND FULL SENTENCE ON



         23   THAT PAGE, "WE LEARNED FROM A COMPAQ PRODUCT MANAGER THAT



         24   MICROSOFT HAD NOT WANTED COMPAQ TO PUT THE NAVIGATOR ICON ON



         25   THE DESKTOP, EVEN ALONGSIDE THE INTERNET EXPLORER ICON."
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          1   A.  CORRECT.



          2   Q.  WHAT COMPAQ PRODUCT MANAGER RELAYED THAT INFORMATION TO



          3   YOU?



          4   A.  I DON'T KNOW.  OUR SALES PEOPLE TOLD ME THAT.



          5   Q.  SO TO WHOM AT NETSCAPE DID THIS UNIDENTIFIED PRODUCT



          6   MANAGER SPEAK?



          7   A.  WELL, I WAS TOLD BY ONE OF OUR SALES PEOPLE, WHO WORKED



          8   IN RAM SHRIRAM'S GROUP, AND THAT'S HOW I LEARNED OF IT.



          9   Q.  AND THAT PERSON WHO SPOKE TO YOU -- DO YOU REMEMBER HIS



         10   NAME OR HER NAME?



         11   A.  IT ESCAPES ME RIGHT THIS MINUTE, BUT WE HAD A LITTLE



         12   SESSION ON TWO OR THREE DIFFERENT OCCASIONS WHERE WE SPOKE



         13   ABOUT THIS, ALONG WITH MR. SHRIRAM IN THE MEETING AND TALKED



         14   ABOUT WHAT HAD HAPPENED AT COMPAQ.



         15   Q.  AND HAD EITHER THE PERSON WHOSE NAME YOU DON'T REMEMBER



         16   OR MR. SHRIRAM --



         17   A.  ALAN LOUIE IS HIS NAME.



         18   Q.  OKAY.  HAD EITHER MR. LOUIE -- AND I ASSUME THAT IS MR.



         19   A.  YES.



         20   Q.  -- LOUIE OR MR. SHRIRAM SPOKEN DIRECTLY TO THE



         21   UNIDENTIFIED COMPAQ PRODUCT MANAGER?



         22   A.  MR. LOUIE HAD.



         23   Q.  OKAY.



         24   A.  MR. SHRIRAM MAY HAVE.  I DON'T REMEMBER THAT.



         25   Q.  AND HOW DID YOU LEARN THAT, IF IT'S YOUR TESTIMONY --
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          1   AND IT IS -- THAT MICROSOFT HAD THREATENED TO



          2   TERMINATE COMPAQ'S WINDOWS LICENSE?



          3   A.  THAT'S WHAT I WAS TOLD BY MR. LOUIE AND MR. SHRIRAM



          4   ABOUT THAT MATTER.



          5   Q.  WHEN DID YOU FIRST LEARN OF THIS SUPPOSED THREAT?



          6   A.  DURING THIS TIMEFRAME.  I DON'T REMEMBER THE EXACT DATE,



          7   BUT IT WAS DURING THAT TIMEFRAME IN THE MIDDLE OF '95 --



          8   SOMEWHERE IN THERE WHEN THEY WERE GETTING READY TO BILL OR



          9   SHIP THEIR CHRISTMAS RUN, I GUESS.



         10   Q.  NOW, IF YOU HAD A CONTRACT AND THEY BREACHED IT, WHY



         11   DIDN'T YOU SUE THEM FOR BREACH?



         12   A.  THE SAME REASON I MENTIONED YESTERDAY.  I DIDN'T CARE TO



         13   SPEND A LOT OF TIME AND MONEY SUING OVER THINGS LIKE THIS.



         14   AND, LIKE I TOLD YOU EARLIER, I AM NOT CERTAIN WE HAD A



         15   CONTRACT.  WE WERE SHOWN THE PRODUCT.  WE BELIEVED WE WERE



         16   ON THE DESKTOP, AND WE WERE EXCITED ABOUT PARTICIPATING IN



         17   IT.



         18             MR. WARDEN:  YOUR HONOR, THIS WOULD BE A GOOD TIME



         19   TO BREAK, AND WE WOULD LIKE A VERY BRIEF SIDEBAR BEFORE THE



         20   COURT RECESSES.



         21             THE COURT: ALL RIGHT.



         22             MR. WARDEN:  AND I AM ON TARGET TO FINISH TODAY.



         23             THE COURT:  I AM PLEASED TO HEAR IT.



         24             ALL RIGHT.  WE'LL STAND IN RECESS UNTIL 2:00



         25   O'CLOCK.
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          1             COUNSEL, APPROACH BENCH.



          2             (AT THE BENCH.)



          3             MR. WARDEN:  YOUR HONOR, I INTEND TO QUESTION



          4   MR. BARKSDALE ABOUT CURRENT COMMERCIAL NEGOTIATIONS WITH



          5   AOL.  NETSCAPE'S POSITION IS THAT SHOULD BE DONE IN A SEALED



          6   COURTROOM.



          7             MR. BOISE:  SHOULD MR. SNYDER BE UP HERE AS WELL?



          8             MR. WARDEN:  I DON'T THINK IT IS PROBABLY



          9   NECESSARY.  I MEAN THEY HAVE EXPRESSED THAT VIEW TO US.



         10             THE COURT:  LET'S HAVE MR. SNYDER COME UP.



         11             (MR. SNYDER COMING TO THE BENCH.)



         12             MR. WARDEN:  ALLEN, I WAS JUST TELLING THE JUDGE



         13   THAT I INTEND TO QUESTION MR. BARKSDALE ABOUT CURRENT



         14   COMMERCIAL NEGOTIATIONS WITH AOL.  THIS WILL TAKE



         15   THREE-TO-FIVE MINUTES.



         16             WE UNDERSTAND YOU WANT THIS DONE IN A SEALED



         17   COURTROOM.  WE AGREE THAT IS APPROPRIATE.



         18             MR. SNYDER:  THAT IS NOT EXACTLY MY POSITION.



         19             MR. WARDEN:  ALL RIGHT.  THEN I MISUNDERSTOOD.



         20             THE COURT: THAT'S WHY YOU ARE UP HERE.  WHAT'S



         21   YOUR POSITION?



         22             MR. WARDEN:  GO AHEAD.



         23             MR. SNYDER:  THANK YOU.  WE WERE TOLD BY COUNSEL



         24   FOR MICROSOFT THAT THEY WANTED TO HAVE A CLOSED COURTROOM IN



         25   ORDER TO RAISE CERTAIN ISSUES REGARDING ONGOING



�

                                                                              83



          1   NEGOTIATIONS.  AND I DON'T KNOW PRECISELY WHAT IT IS THEY



          2   WANT TO COVER.  APPARENTLY, THEY WANT TO COVER SOME ISSUES



          3   THAT RELATE TO COMPETITIVE DISCUSSIONS WITH ONE OR MORE



          4   COMPANIES.  I DON'T KNOW PRECISELY WHAT IT IS.  WE OBVIOUSLY



          5   WOULD HAVE A CONCERN ABOUT REVEALING ANY ONGOING COMPETITIVE



          6   DISCUSSIONS, BUT WE DON'T KNOW WHAT IT IS THEY PLAN TO



          7   COVER.



          8             SO I GUESS UNDER THE CASE LAW, AS I UNDERSTAND IT,



          9   IF A PARTY -- PARTICULARLY A COMPETITOR -- WANTS TO KNOW



         10   ABOUT TRADE SECRETS, OR COMPETITIVE NEGOTIATIONS, OR



         11   COMMERCIAL INFORMATION, THEN THERE IS A REQUIRED SHOWING OF



         12   RELEVANCE BEFORE YOU CAN GET INTO THAT, EVEN WITH A



         13   PROTECTIVE ORDER, TO REVEAL IT TO A COMPETITOR, BUT SINCE I



         14   DON'T KNOW WHAT IT IS THEY WANT TO ASK, I DON'T ACTUALLY



         15   KNOW --



         16             THE COURT:  MAYBE HE'LL TELL YOU.



         17             MR. WARDEN:  I THOUGHT I HAD.  I BEG YOUR PARDON.



         18   I WANT TO ASK ABOUT CURRENT COMMERCIAL NEGOTIATIONS BETWEEN



         19   NETSCAPE AND AOL, IF ANY -- AND I DON'T KNOW WHETHER THERE



         20   ARE ANY -- LOOKING TOWARDS THIS JANUARY 1, 1999 DATE THAT I



         21   HAVE REFERRED TO.  I HAVE BEEN UNDER THE IMPRESSION -- AND I



         22   GUESS FALSELY -- THAT IF I WERE TO DO THAT, IT WAS YOUR



         23   DESIRE THAT IT BE DONE IN A CLOSED COURTROOM.  I REGARDED



         24   THAT DESIRE AS REASONABLE.  I DON'T CARE WHETHER IT'S DONE



         25   IN A CLOSED COURTROOM OR NOT.
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          1             MR. SNYDER: YOUR HONOR --



          2             THE COURT:  IF I AM TO LET HIM DO IT, DO YOU WANT



          3   IT IN A CLOSED COURTROOM?



          4             MR. SNYDER:  THERE WOULD BE A CERTAIN CIRCUS-LIKE



          5   ATMOSPHERE IF WE HAVE A CLOSED COURTROOM AND THE PRESS WERE



          6   TOLD THEY WERE EXCLUDED.  I THINK THERE WOULD BE A CERTAIN



          7   EXCITEMENT ABOUT THE PROCESS.



          8             THE COURT:  ALL WE HAVE TO DO IS ANNOUNCE WHAT THE



          9   SUBJECT IS.  OF COURSE, THAT NEVER ALLAYS THEIR CURIOSITY.



         10             MR. WARDEN:  I DON'T THINK WE SHOULD ANNOUNCE THE



         11   SUBJECT.



         12             THE COURT:  WHAT I COULD DO IS SIMPLY SAY THAT I



         13   HAVE DETERMINED THAT THERE IS A LEGITIMATE BASIS BOTH TO



         14   ALLOW MR. WARDEN TO INQUIRE AND FOR NETSCAPE TO DESIRE THAT



         15   ITS FUTURE COMPETITIVE PLANS NOT BE REVEALED PUBLICLY AT



         16   THIS TIME AND, THEREFORE, I AM GOING TO CLOSE THE COURTROOM.



         17             MR. SNYDER: WOULD IT BE POSSIBLE TO DO THAT IN



         18   CHAMBERS RATHER THAN IN THE COURTROOM WITH THE PRESS



         19   STANDING IN THE HALLWAY?



         20             MR. WARDEN:  I DON'T CARE IF IT IS DONE IN



         21   CHAMBERS, BUT THIS IS NOT GOING TO TAKE VERY LONG.  IT'S NOT



         22   GOING TO TAKE VERY LONG.  I AM SAVING IT FOR THE VERY END.



         23             THE COURT:  I DON'T WANT TO DO THAT.  I WOULD



         24   RATHER DO IT IN A CLOSED COURTROOM.



         25             WHY DON'T WE DO THAT IMMEDIATELY PRIOR TO OUR
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          1   MID-AFTERNOON RECESS?



          2             MR. WARDEN:  THAT'S FINE.



          3             MR. SNYDER: YOUR HONOR, IF THE QUESTIONING IS



          4   LIMITED TO THE SUBJECT MR. WARDEN MENTIONED, RATHER THAN



          5   ENGAGING IN WHATEVER DISCUSSIONS THEY HAVE HAD WITH OTHER



          6   COMPANIES OR ON OTHER SUBJECTS, WE WOULDN'T HAVE A PROBLEM



          7   WITH THAT, BUT GENERAL CONVERSATION ABOUT ANY ONGOING



          8   DISCUSSIONS WITH COMPANIES ABOUT VARIOUS OTHER ISSUES, I



          9   THINK WOULD BE PROBLEMATIC.



         10             THE COURT:  WELL, LET ME MAKE A SUGGESTION HERE.



         11   DURING THE NOONTIME RECESS, WHY DON'T YOU TALK TO



         12   MR. BARKSDALE AND SUGGEST HOW HE MIGHT RESPOND WITHOUT



         13   REVEALING WHAT YOU THINK OUGHT NOT TO BE REVEALED, OR AT



         14   LEAST DEVELOP A PROTOCOL FOR APPROACHING WHATEVER QUESTIONS



         15   MR. WARDEN IS GOING TO ASK.  WE WILL SEE WHERE WE GO FROM



         16   THERE.



         17             YOU ALL SHOULD KNOW THAT I AM NOT SEALING THE



         18   BENCH CONFERENCES HERE.  SO THIS BENCH CONFERENCE WILL BE



         19   AVAILABLE ON THE TRANSCRIPT.



         20             MR. BOIES:  ON THE OTHER HAND, I THINK THIS BENCH



         21   CONFERENCE BASICALLY STATES WHAT THE COURT WAS GOING TO SAY



         22   ANYWAY, WHICH IS THAT --



         23             THE COURT:  THAT'S CORRECT.



         24             MR. BOIES:  -- THAT THERE WAS A PORTION OF THE



         25   EXAMINATION --
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          1             THE COURT:  THAT I HAVE DETERMINED A PORTION OF



          2   THE EXAMINATION SHOULD BE CLOSED, BECAUSE IT DEALS WITH



          3   FUTURE COMPETITIVE PLANS.



          4             MR. BOIES:  RIGHT.



          5             THE COURT:  I DON'T THINK THAT IS OF ANY INTEREST



          6   TO THE GENERAL PUBLIC.



          7             MR. HOUCK:  I RAISE ANOTHER ISSUE.  I THINK THE



          8   PROTECTIVE ORDER AT ONE POINT INCLUDED A SEPARATE PROVISION



          9   FOR INSIDE COUNSEL AND WHETHER OR NOT THEY WERE PRIVY TO



         10   THAT INFORMATION.



         11             MR. WARDEN:  WE'RE IN COURT NOW.  WE'RE IN COURT.



         12   WE'RE NOT IN THE DISCOVERY PERIOD.  WE'RE GOVERNED BY THE



         13   FINAL PRETRIAL ORDER, AND COUNSEL OF RECORD ARE ENTITLED TO



         14   BE PRESENT.



         15             MR. HOUCK:  MR. SNYDER MAY NOT CARE.



         16             THE COURT:  WELL, I AM PLEASED THAT MR. SNYDER IS



         17   HERE SO HE CAN ARTICULATE A NONPARTY WITNESS' CONCERN ABOUT



         18   WHAT MAY BE REVEALED.



         19             MR. SNYDER:  THANK YOU, YOUR HONOR.  AND THE



         20   TRANSCRIPT OF THE SESSION WITH THE COURTROOM CLOSED WOULD



         21   THEN BE --



         22             THE COURT:  THAT WOULD BE UNDER SEAL.



         23             MR. SNYDER:  WOULD THAT ALSO BE SOMETHING THAT



         24   ONLY THE OUTSIDE COUNSEL FOR MICROSOFT WOULD HAVE ACCESS TO



         25   RATHER THAN INSIDE COUNSEL?  UNDER THE PROTECTIVE ORDER,
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          1   THERE WAS A CATEGORY OF INFORMATION THAT WAS HIGHLY



          2   CONFIDENTIAL IF HANDLED THAT WAY.



          3             THE COURT:  ALL RIGHT.



          4             MR. WARDEN:  I AM SORRY, YOUR HONOR.  MY POSITION



          5   ON THAT IS THAT WE'RE AT TRIAL NOW.  WE'RE NOT THE UNDER



          6   PROTECTIVE ORDER, BUT WE'RE UNDER THE FINAL PRETRIAL ORDER



          7   ABOUT SEALING THE COURTROOM.  AND COUNSEL OF RECORD FOR THE



          8   DEFENDANT, INCLUDING INSIDE COUNSEL, AND CERTAINLY ITS



          9   CORPORATE REPRESENTATIVE, MR. NEUKOM, THE PARTY, ARE



         10   ENTITLED TO BE PRESENT FOR THIS.  THEY ARE OFFICERS OF THE



         11   COURT.



         12             THE COURT:  THEN I AM GOING TO MAKE YOU MAKE A



         13   HEAVY SHOWING OF RELEVANCE.  AND I AM NOT SURE THAT IT IS



         14   RELEVANT AT ALL.



         15             MR. WARDEN:  I THINK THIS IS QUITE RELEVANT, AND I



         16   THINK THAT THE INFORMATION THAT COMES OUT ISN'T GOING TO BE



         17   ALL THAT STARTLING IN TERMS OF DISCLOSING DETAILED SECRETS



         18   OF ANY KIND.  I WAS THE ONE THAT CALLED THIS CONFERENCE IN



         19   ORDER TO ACCOMMODATE WHAT I UNDERSTOOD THEIR NEEDS WERE.



         20   AND I AM TRYING TO DO THAT.



         21             THE COURT:  AND BOTH THEY AND I APPRECIATE IT.  I



         22   UNDERSTAND THAT.



         23             MR. BOIES:  COULD I MAKE A SUGGESTION, YOUR HONOR?



         24   IT MIGHT BE POSSIBLE TO HAVE THE INITIAL TESTIMONY TAKEN IN



         25   A SEALED COURTROOM WITH ONLY OUTSIDE COUNSEL PRESENT.  THE
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          1   COURT WOULD THEN HAVE A TRANSCRIPT UPON WHICH THE COURT



          2   COULD MAKE A DECISION AS TO WHETHER (A) IT WAS RELEVANT, AND



          3   (B) WHETHER IT WAS APPROPRIATE TO BE PROTECTED.



          4             I TEND TO AGREE WITH WHAT I THINK WAS THE



          5   IMPLICATION OF MR. WARDEN'S LAST STATEMENT.  IT MAY BE WHEN



          6   THE ACTUAL TESTIMONY COMES, IT'S NOT AS EITHER SECRETIVE OR



          7   RELEVANT AS ONE PARTY OR THE OTHER MAY THINK.



          8             THE COURT:  I SUSPECT THAT THAT MAY BE THE CASE.



          9   WHAT I WAS GOING TO DO WAS SIMPLY POSTPONE A DECISION ON THE



         10   LATTER QUESTION, NAMELY ACCESSIBILITY TO IN-HOUSE COUNSEL



         11   UNTIL AFTER WE HAVE FOUND OUT WHAT IT IS THAT IS GOING TO BE



         12   ASKED AND WHAT THE ANSWERS WILL BE.



         13             MR. SNYDER:  YOUR HONOR, I THINK THAT IS WORKABLE,



         14   ASSUMING, OF COURSE, THE IN-HOUSE COUNSEL AREN'T PRESENT IN



         15   THE COURTROOM DURING THE INITIAL EXAMINATION.  IF THEY ARE,



         16   THEN, OBVIOUSLY, THE DECISION HAS ALREADY BEEN MADE.



         17             THE COURT:  WHEN WE CLOSE THE COURTROOM, THE



         18   IN-HOUSE COUNSEL WILL BE EXCLUDED FROM THE COURTROOM, AND I



         19   WILL MAKE A LATER DETERMINATION AS TO WHETHER OR NOT YOU MAY



         20   MAKE THEM PRIVY TO WHATEVER THE TESTIMONY IS.



         21             MR. WARDEN:  AND THAT APPLIES EVEN THOUGH THEY ARE



         22   COUNSEL OF RECORD IN THIS CASE AND WILL BE PARTICIPATING IN



         23   THE TRIAL, BECAUSE THEY WILL BE?



         24             THE COURT:  WHO ARE YOU TALKING ABOUT BESIDES



         25   MR. NEUKOM?
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          1             MR. WARDEN:  I AM TALKING ABOUT MR. NEUKOM, WHO IS



          2   THE CORPORATE REPRESENTATIVE, AND MR. BURT AND HEINER.



          3             MR. SNYDER:  YOUR HONOR, IT'S MY UNDERSTANDING



          4   THAT MR. NEUKOM IS HEAVILY INVOLVED IN A WHOLE RANGE OF



          5   ISSUES WITH MICROSOFT.  SO IF THE QUESTIONS -- I DON'T KNOW



          6   WHAT THE QUESTIONS ARE GOING TO BE -- IF THE QUESTIONS TURN



          7   ON WHAT ARE THE PROPOSED TERMS OF A POSSIBLE CONTRACT, THAT



          8   WOULD BE SOMETHING ONE WOULDN'T NORMALLY SAY TO A



          9   COMPETITOR.



         10             THE COURT:  WELL, HE HAS ALSO ENTERED AN



         11   APPEARANCE IN THIS CASE AS COUNSEL.  AND HE IS THEN SUBJECT



         12   TO ANY ADMONITION THAT I WOULD DELIVER THAT IT IS NOT TO BE



         13   IMPARTED TO --



         14             MR. SNYDER:  I UNDERSTAND THAT, YOUR HONOR, AND I



         15   DON'T MEAN TO SUGGEST THAT HE WOULDN'T TRY TO FOLLOW THAT,



         16   BUT IF SOMEONE IS SITTING IN A BUSINESS COMMERCIAL



         17   DISCUSSION OF A COMPANY ABOUT THE TERMS OF A CONTRACT OFFER,



         18   IF THEY KNOW IN THEIR MIND WHAT TERMS THE COMPETITOR HAS



         19   OFFERED, IT'S DIFFICULT TO ERASE THAT FROM THEIR MIND, I



         20   SUGGEST.



         21             THE COURT:  WE'RE AT THE MOMENT SPECULATING AS TO



         22   WHAT IT'S GOING TO BE.  LET ME MAKE A SUGGESTION.  WHY DON'T



         23   YOU WRITE OUT WHAT IT IS THAT YOU PROPOSE TO ASK HIM AND



         24   SHARE THAT WITH MR. SNYDER.



         25             MR. WARDEN:  I WILL BE HAPPY TO DO THAT.
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          1             THE COURT:  SHARE THAT WITH MR. SNYDER AND



          2   MR. BOIES OVER THE LUNCHEON RECESS.



          3             MR. WARDEN:  I THINK WE HAVE PROBABLY TAKEN ABOUT



          4   THREE TIMES AS MUCH TIME WITH THIS CONFERENCE AS WE WILL



          5   TAKE WITH THE EXAMINATION.



          6             MR. SNYDER:  MAYBE WE CAN SIMPLIFY THE MATTER,



          7   YOUR HONOR.



          8             THE COURT:  AND THEN YOU CAN DISCUSS WITH



          9   MR. BARKSDALE HOW HE MIGHT TRUTHFULLY AND ACCURATELY RESPOND



         10   TO THAT WITHOUT REVEALING WHAT YOU DO NOT DESIRE TO HAVE



         11   REVEALED.



         12             MR. WARDEN:  I DON'T THINK IT'S GOING TO BE A BIG



         13   PROBLEM.  I SHOULD NEVER HAVE PRESENTED THIS.



         14             THE COURT:  WELL, YOU SAID IT WAS RELEVANT.



         15             MR. WARDEN:  WELL, IT'S RELEVANT, BUT I DON'T KNOW



         16   WHAT THE ANSWERS ARE GOING TO BE.  BUT MY GUESS IS THAT



         17   WHILE RELEVANT, IT IS NOT GOING TO BE ANYTHING THAT IS GOING



         18   TO DRIVE, YOU KNOW, SOME GUY OUT TO THE PHONE TO SAY, "BUY



         19   OR SELL THE SHARES."



         20             THE COURT:  ALL RIGHT.  2:00 O'CLOCK.



         21             (WHEREUPON, AT 12:30 P.M., THE ABOVE-ENTITLED



         22   MATTER WAS RECESSED FOR LUNCH.)



         23



         24



         25
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